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BRIEF PROFILE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. Dilip Suryavanshi: Non-Executive DirectorHe holds a master’s degree in Civil Engineering from the University of Jabalpur; He has over 39 years ofexperience in the business of construction. He has been a Director of the Company since incorporation. Hewas the President of the Madhya Pradesh Builders Association.
2. Satish Chandra Pandey -Non Executive Independent DirectorHe holds bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering from Government College of Engineering and Technology,Raipur. He is a retired government servant and was the Vice President of Indian Road Congress. He haspreviously worked as Engineer-in-Chief and Secretary with the Public Works Department, Government ofMadhya Pradesh. During his 38 years of experience and career in the Public Works Department, his credit ofsupervising major roads, bridges and building works, including Indore bypass, a project of World Bank.
3. Ashwini Verma - Non Executive Independent DirectorHe holds a bachelor's degree in Civil Engineering from Rajiv Gandhi Proudyogiki Vishwavidyalaya, Bhopal. Hehas over 30 years of experience in architectural and site engineering services. He is a partner of M/s. AV &Associates. He has previously worked in various capacities in M/s. Gawali & Associates, Architects andEngineers, M/s. Waseem & Associates, M/s. Pradeep K. Saxena & Associates and Harekrishna ColonisersPrivate Limited.
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DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN- U74110MP2010PTC023673)

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 12th Annual General Meeting of the Members of DBL Infra Assets Private Limited (CIN:U74110MP2010PTC023673) will be held at the Registered Office of the Company situated at Plot No.5, Inside Govind NarayanSingh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal - 462016 (M.P.) on Friday, September 30, 2022 at 10.00 am to transact thefollowing Businesses:
ORDINARY BUSINESS1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Standalone & Consolidated financial statements including the balance sheet andstatement for change in the equity, profit and loss and cash flow of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022,together with the reports of the board of directors and auditors thereon;2. To re-appoint Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi (DIN: 00039944) as a director, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offer himself forthe re-appointment.

3. To consider and approve the appointment of Statutory Auditor of the Company

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following as an Ordinary Resolution:“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 140, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the CompaniesAct, 2013, and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactmentthereof, for the time being in force), M/s. Mukund M. Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (ICAI Firm Registration No.106655W) be and is hereby appointed  as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office for a term of Five consecutiveyears from the conclusion of 12th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Companyto be held in the calendar year 2027, at such remuneration as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company.”“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Board of Directors, be and is, hereby empowered and authorized to take such steps, inrelation to the above and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental forgiving effect to this resolution and to file necessary E-Forms with Registrar of Companies.”
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds,matters, and things as, in its absolute discretion, may be considered necessary, expedient or desirable and to settle any questionor doubt that may arise in relation thereto in order to give effect to the foregoing resolution or otherwise considered by theBoard of Directors to be in the interest of the Company.”
SPECIAL BUSINESS

Item No.4

To Considered and approved the limit of RS. 4355.00 Crores under section 185 of Companies Act, 2013 for providing
loans/guarantee/securities to any of Subsidiary Companies and/ or Associate Companies and/or any other CompanyTo consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 185, 186 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and subject to all other applicable provisions of theCompanies Act, 2013, if any, (including any statutory modification or reenactment thereof for the time being in force) and theprovisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as approved by the AuditCommittee and Board of Directors of the Company, the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded tothe Board of directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board”, which term shall be deemed to include anycommittee thereof) to give unsecured loans, advances and to provide guarantee or security to any of Subsidiary Companies and/or Associate Companies and/or any other Company for providing financial support as per the requirement of the lenders/Government authorities and business necessity not exceeding to Rs. 4355.00 crores only (Rupees Four Thousand Three
Hundred and Fifty Five Crores Only) in one or more tranches and the said loan/ guarantee/security given by the Companyshall be utilized for the principal business activities of the recipient company(ies).
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts deeds,matters, and things, in its absolute discretion, as may be considered necessary, expedient or desirable and to settle any questionor doubt that may arise in relation thereto in order to give effect to the foregoing resolution or otherwise considered by theBoard of Directors in the interest of the Company.”

Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road , Bhopal – 462016
Ph.No. 0755-4029999, Fax: 0755-4029998 E-Mail: dblinfraassets@gmail.com



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN- U74110MP2010PTC023673)

Item No.5

Considered and approved the investment of funds by way of providing promoter contributions in the form of Equity,
Optionally Convertible Debentures and Compulsory Convertible Debentures, providing Unsecured Loans and to
provide/give Undertakings, Guarantee and Securities in connection with credit facilities/loans to be availed by DBL-
Siarmal Coal Mines Private Limited (DSCPL)

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of section 179, 185 and 186 and any other applicable provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013 as amended from time to time and rules made there under, subject to the approval of shareholders in general meeting,if applicable, as approved by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company, the consent of the members of theCompany be and is hereby accorded to the Board of directors of the Company, to invest funds of the Company in  “DBL-SiarmalCoal Mines Private Limited” from internal accrual of  the company and not by way of borrowing for execution of the project“Mine Developer cum Operator for Development and Operation of Siarmal Open Cast Project in Sundergarh district of
Odisha” (“Project”) for meeting the required amounts of Promoter’s Contribution in the said DSCPL subscribing equity shares,Optionally Convertible Debentures and Compulsory Convertible Debentures or by any other mode to be issued by DSCPL and/or interest free unsecured loans in one or more tranches aggregating to an amount not exceeding Rs. 700 crores to be
invested over next 7 (seven) years, in accordance with the terms of sanction of the Lenders, whom DSCPL shall approach forsanction of loan/credit facilities.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to provisions of section 179 (f) of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time totime and rules made there under, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to furnish undertakings,corporate guarantee and provide securities (in the form of pledge of shares or otherwise) in favour of Lender(s)/security trusteein connection with the loan to be availed by DSCPL for the execution of the Project, aggregating to an amount not exceeding
Rs. 2500 Crores, in accordance with the terms of sanction of the Lenders, whom DSCPL shall approach for sanction ofloan/credit facilities.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded, that pursuant to applicableprovisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and various loan arrangements to be entered/entered between the Company and DBL-Siarmal Coal Mines Private Limited (DSCPL), the DSCPL has to give the right to the Company to convert, at its option entireamount of outstanding  loan along with interest  either in part or full into fully paid-up equity shares of the Company, at par orat a price to be determined as per the provisions of Applicable Laws (“Conversion Right”) in the manner specified in a noticein writing to be given by the Company to the DBL-Siarmal Coal Mines Private Limited ("Notice of Conversion"). In such Noticeof Conversion the Company shall stipulate the amount which it intends to convert into equity as also the date on which suchconversion shall take place ("Date of Conversion") and the said equity shares so allotted to the Company shall rank paripassuwith the existing equity shares of the SPV in all respects and the Conversion Right may be exercised by the Company on one ormore occasions during the currency of the loans at its sole discretion.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the board is hereby authorizes to authorise the officers/directors of the Company to execute andsign all deeds, documents, instruments and other writings and affix the seal of the Company and to do all such acts, deeds,matters and things, as may be necessary and expedient for implementing and giving effect to the above purpose.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi, Director, Mr. Mayank Jiniwal, Chief Financial Officer, as authorizedsignatories of the Company be and hereby severally authorized to negotiate, approve and accept on behalf of the Company suchterms and conditions as may be acceptable to the Lenders and the same be finalized and required agreements, undertakings andother relevant documents be executed on behalf of the Company by any one of them.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Common Seal of the Company, if required, be affixed to the Undertakings, Agreements, Deedsand any other document as may be required to be executed under the Common Seal of the Company for the purposes statedabove, in the presence of any one of the above mentioned authorized officials who shall sign the same in token thereof.

By Order of the Board of Directors of
DBL Infra Assets Private Limited

Sd/-
Pragya Raghuwanshi

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
M.No. A52982

CIN: U74110MP2010PTC023673
Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan
Singh Gate Chuna Bhatti,
Kolar Road Bhopal, MP-462016

Place: Bhopal
Date: 08.09.2022

Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road , Bhopal – 462016
Ph.No. 0755-4029999, Fax: 0755-4029998 E-Mail: dblinfraassets@gmail.com



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN- U74110MP2010PTC023673)

Notes:

a. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY, TO ATTEND
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THAT A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A
PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING 50 AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE
NOT MORE THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. IN CASE A
PROXY IS PROPOSED TO BE APPOINTED BY A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS, THEN, SUCH PROXY SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR
ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Company's registeredoffice at Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal (M.P) 462016, not less than 48hours before the commencement of the AGM.b. The information required to be provided under the Secretarial Standards on General Meetings, regarding the Directorswhose re-appointment is proposed, the relevant Information in respect of the business under item No.2 has been annexedseparately in Annexure A.c. In terms of Section 152 of the Act, Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi (DIN:00039944) Director, retire by rotation at the Meeting andbeing eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors of the Company commends his re-appointment.d. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send theCompany, a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf atthe Meeting.e. Members/proxies are requested to bring their attendance slip duly completed along with their copy of Annual Report tothe Meeting.f. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send tothe Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalfat the Meetingg. In case of Joint holders attending the Meeting only such joint holder which is higher in the order of names will be entitledto vote.h. The documents referred to in the proposed resolutions and explanatory statement are open for inspection at theCorporate Office of the Company during working hours except on holidays.i. The Director’s Report, Auditor’s Report and Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 and the Profit and Loss Account& cash flow statement for the period ended on that date are enclosed.j. Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of CompaniesAct, 2013 and Register of Contracts or arrangements in which directors are interested maintained under Section 189 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the Annual General Meeting.k. The details Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA) is as under:-Name of RTA: Link lntime India Private LimitedAddress: C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai, Maharashtra- 400083Tel No. +91 22 49186000E-mail: amit.dabhade@linkintime.co.inWebsite www.linkintime.co.inl. Members who have not registered / updated their e-mail addresses with RTA, if shares are held in physical mode or withtheir DPs, if shares are held in electronic mode, are requested to do so for receiving all future communications from theCompany including Annual Reports, Notices, Circulars, etc., electronically.m. Pursuant to Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not having any unclaimed or unpaid dividends liableto be transferred to the Investors Education and Protection Fund.n. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to intimate any change in their address or bank mandates totheir Depository Participants (DPs) with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares inphysical mode are requested to advise any change in their address or bank mandates to the Company / RTA.o. Members are requested to notify any change in their address to the Company immediately.

Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road , Bhopal – 462016
Ph.No. 0755-4029999, Fax: 0755-4029998 E-Mail: dblinfraassets@gmail.com



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN- U74110MP2010PTC023673)p. Member desirous of seeking any information on the accounts or operations of the Company is requested to forward his/herquery in writing to the Company at least 48 hours prior to the Meeting, so that the required information can be madeavailable at the Meeting.q. The relevant explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of special business as setout above is annexed hereto.r. A route map showing directions to reach the venue of the 12th Annual General Meeting is given at the end of this Noticeas per the requirement of the of the Secretarial Standards-2 on “General Meetings”.

By Order of the Board of Directors of
DBL Infra Assets Private Limited

Sd/-
Pragya Raghuwanshi

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No. A52982

CIN: U74110MP2010PTC023673
Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan
Singh Gate Chuna Bhatti,
Kolar Road Bhopal, MP-462016

Place: Bhopal
Date: 08.09.2022

Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road , Bhopal – 462016
Ph.No. 0755-4029999, Fax: 0755-4029998 E-Mail: dblinfraassets@gmail.com



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN- U74110MP2010PTC023673)

Annexure of to the notice of Annual General Meeting(Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013)
Item No. 3

This Statement is provided voluntarily, as a good corporate governance practice, though not required as per Section 102 of theAct.M/s Mukund M. Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (ICAI Firm Registration No. 106655W) were appointed as theStatutory Auditors of the Company on February 11, 2022 by the Board of Directors and approved by shareholders in theremeeting held on May 10, 2022 and to hold the office until conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of directors of the Company has recommended the appointmentof M/s Mukund M. Chitale & Co. Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration number : 106655W) as the  StatutoryAuditors of the Company,  to hold office for a term of five years from the conclusion of 12th Annual General Meeting till theconclusion of 17thAnnual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the calendar year 2027, at such remuneration as shallbe fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company.M/s Mukund M. Chitale & Co. Chartered Accountants, Mumbai fulfils the conditions as specified in the Companies Act, 2013 andhas also submitted his eligibility certificate to the Company and meets the criteria as specified in section 141 of the CompaniesAct, 2013. The firm has been awarded the Peer Review Certificate issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indiapursuant to the Statement on Peer Review.Accordingly, approval of the Members is being sought for the proposal contained in the resolution as set out at Item No.  3 of theaccompanying Notice.None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, is in anyway concerned or interestedfinancially or otherwise in the Resolution as set out at Item No. 3 as an Ordinary Resolution.The Board recommends as an Ordinary Resolution set forth in Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice for the approval of theMembers.
Item No.4The Board has considered that in the ordinary course of business, the Company is required to give loans and provide guaranteeand securities on behalf of the Subsidiary Companies and/ or Associate Companies and/or any other Company while providingfinancial support/Loans as per the requirement of the lenders/Government authorities and business necessity from time totime. The Board has considered that the Companies (Amendment Act), 2017, the Central Government has substituted the section185 and according to that, now the Company is eligible to give loans and provide guarantee or security on behalf of the otherCompanies to the Bank and Financial Institutions, etc. where any or all the directors are interested, subject to the requirementfor approval of the members by way of special resolution and that the amount of loans, guarantee and securities should beutilised by such Companies for their principal business activities. Hence, in order to conduct the smooth operations of thebusiness and align with the various legislations, policies, guidelines laid down by various statutory authorities/lenders and otheroperational business requirements of the Subsidiary Companies and/ or Associate Companies and/or any other Company, onthe basis of recommendation of Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company has proposed to obtain approval of theshareholders by way of special resolution as contained in the notice of the Annual General Meeting for an amount of Rs. 4355.00
crores only (Rupees Four Thousand Three Hundred and Fifty Five Crores Only) in one or more tranches at any time andthe said loan/ guarantee/any security given by the Company shall be utilized for the principal business activities of the recipientCompany(ies).

Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road , Bhopal – 462016
Ph.No. 0755-4029999, Fax: 0755-4029998 E-Mail: dblinfraassets@gmail.com



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN- U74110MP2010PTC023673)

The details of limits are as under:S.NO Name of Companies Status Purpose of giving
loan

Rate of Interest Limit (in
Crores)1 Dodaballapur Hoskote HighwaysPrivate Limited Associate To meet theroutine/principalbusiness activities ofthe Company

Interest will becharged as per theprovision of section186 of theCompanies Act,2013, if applicable,as amended fromtime to time

50
2 Narenpur Purnea Highways PrivateLimited Associate 503 Repallewada Highways  Limited Associate 504 Dhrol Bhadra Highways  Limited Associate 605 Pathrapali-Kathghora HighwaysPrivate Limited Associate 606 Bhopal Redevelopment Realty PrivateLimited - 1007 Bangalore Malur Highways  Limited - 80
8 Malur Bangarpet Highways  Limited - 90
9 Dbl Poondiyankuppam HighwaysLimited - 110
10 DBL  Viluppuram Highways  Limited - 70
11 Sannur Bikarnakette HighwaysLimited - 100
12 DBL-Siarmal Coal Mines PrivateLimited - 370
13 DBL Chandikhole Bhadrak HighwaysLtd. - 75
14 DBL Bangalore Nidagatta HighwaysPvt. Ltd. Associate 850
15 DBL Anandapuram AnakapalliHighways Private Limited - 17016 DBL Gorhar Khairatunda Highways Pvt.Ltd. Associate 65
17 DBL Nidagatta Mysore Highways Pvt.Ltd. Associate 95018 DBL Rewa Sidhi Highways Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary 5019 DBL Byrapura Challakere HighwaysPvt. Ltd. Associate 5020 DBL Sangli Borgaon Highways  Ltd. - 6021 DBL Bellary Byrapura Highways Pvt.Ltd. Associate 50
22 DBL Infra Tech Private Limited - 35023 Bangarupalem Gudipala HighwaysLimited - 70
24 Raipur-Visakhapatnam-CG-2 HighwaysLimited - 75
25 Other Companies (unidentifiedcompanies/not yet incorporated/through acquisition companies orotherwise)

- 350
Total 4355

Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road , Bhopal – 462016
Ph.No. 0755-4029999, Fax: 0755-4029998 E-Mail: dblinfraassets@gmail.com



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN- U74110MP2010PTC023673)

The Board recommends as a Special Resolution set forth in Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice for the approval of theMembers.None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives or any of other official(s) of the Company arefinancially interested in the aforesaid resolution, however they may be deemed to be interested financially or otherwise to theextent of their directorship or the shareholding by them in such Companies, if any.
Item No.5

Considered and approved the investment of funds by way of providing promoter contributions in the form of Equity,
Optionally Convertible Debentures and Compulsory Convertible Debentures, Providing Unsecured Loans and To
Provide/Give Undertakings, Guarantee and Securities in connection with credit facilities/loans to be availed by DBL-
Siarmal Coal Mines Private Limited (DSCPL)

Pursuant to the provisions of section 179, 185 and 186 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 asamended from time to time and rules made there under, subject to the approval of shareholders in general meeting, if applicable,the Company propose to make investment of funds by way of providing contributions in its capacity as a Promoter of the “DBL-Siarmal Coal Mines Private Limited” (DSCPL), for execution of the project “Mine Developer cum Operator for Development
and Operation of Siarmal Open Cast Project in Sundergarh district of Odisha” (“Project”) for meeting the required amountof Promoter’s Contribution not exceeding Rs. 700 crores to be invested over next 7 (seven) years by way of subscribingequity shares, Optionally Convertible Debentures and Compulsory Convertible Debentures to be issued by DSCPL and infusionof unsecured loans in accordance with the terms of sanction of the Lenders, whom DSCPL shall approach for sanction ofloan/credit facilities. Further, the Company may also be required to provide/give undertakings, guarantee and securities inconnection with the financial Assistance/credit facilities to be availed by DBL-Siarmal Coal Mines Private Limited (DSCPL)
not exceeding Rs. 2500 Crores, in accordance with the terms of sanction of the Lenders, whom DSCPL shall approach forsanction of the loan/credit facilities.Further, with respect to authorization to be provided to the Company, for (i) investment  of required amount for meeting thePromoters Contribution in the form of Equity, Unsecured loan, Optionally Convertible Debentures and Compulsory ConvertibleDebentures,  (ii) for providing undertakings, guarantee and securities in connection with loans/ credit facilities to be availed by
DSCPL, and (iii) delegating the powers to finalize the terms and conditions of the investment, loan and guarantee or security tobe provided by the Company, within the aforesaid limits and authorize officers/directors of the Company to execute and sign alldeeds, documents, instruments and other writings and affix the common seal of the Company (if required) and to do all suchacts, deeds, matters and things, as may be necessary and expedient for implementing and giving effect to the above purpose .Further it has also  been proposed that in terms of the various loan arrangements  to be entered between  the Company andDBL-Siarmal Coal Mines Private Limited (DSCPL) and if the DSCPL is committing a default of payment or repayment of anyinstalments of the loan (includes Optionally Convertible Debentures, Compulsory Convertible Debentures), then DBL-SiarmalCoal Mines Private Limited has to give the right to the Company to convert, at its option entire amount of outstanding  loan alongwith interest  either in part or full into fully paid-up equity shares of the Company, at par or at a price to be determined as perthe provisions of Applicable Laws (“Conversion Right”) in the manner specified in a notice in writing to be given by theCompany to the DBL-Siarmal Coal Mines Private Limited ("Notice of Conversion"). In such Notice of Conversion the Companyshall stipulate the amount which it intends to convert into equity as also the date on which such conversion shall take place("Date of Conversion") and the said equity shares so allotted to the Company shall rank paripassu with the existing equityshares of the DSCPL in all respects.The Board recommends as a Special Resolution set forth in Item No. 5 of the accompanying Notice for the approval of theMembers.None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives or any of other official(s) of the Company arefinancially interested in the aforesaid resolution, however they may be deemed to be interested financially or otherwise to theextent of their directorship or the shareholding by them in such Companies, if any.
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DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN- U74110MP2010PTC023673)

(ANNEXURE A TO NOTICE DATED SEPTEMBER 08, 2022)
Details of Directors Seeking Appointment/Re-Appointment/variation of the terms of remuneration at the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting(Pursuant to Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meeting)
Name of Director Dilip SuryavanshiDIN 00039944Date of Birth and age 12.10 .1956, (66 years)Date of Appointment on the Board 31.05.2010Qualifications Graduate (B.E.–Civil)Experience and Expertise He holds a master’s degree in Civil Engineering from the University of Jabalpur; He has over 39years of experience in the business of construction. He has been a Director of the Companysince incorporation. He was the President of the Madhya Pradesh Builders Association.Directorships held in other publiccompanies and private companies(excluding foreign companies. Directorship in Listed Companies:1. Dilip Buildcon Limited

Directorship in other Unlisted public Companies:1. DBL Chandikhole Bhadrak Highways Limited
Directorship in other Private Companies:1. Kymore Iron Ore Pvt Ltd2. Suryavanshi Minerals Private Limited3. DNN Media Communication Private Limited4. Makson Health Care Private Limited5. DBL Electricity & Power Transmission private Limited6. Acquilla Properties Private Limited7. DBL Gorhar Khairatunda Highways Private Limited8. DBL Infradevelopers Private LimitedMemberships/Chairmanships ofcommittees across all companies He is the member of the following committee in Dilip Buildcon Limited :1. Audit Committee2. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee3. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
4. Enquiry Committee for leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive information
He is the chairman of the following committees in Dilip Buildcon Limited :1. Borrowing Committee2. Risk Management Committee3. Business Development and Administration Committee4. Lending and Investment Committee
He is chairman and members  of  DBL Infra Assets Private Limited:
Chairman:1. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee2. Risk Management Committee.
Member:1. Audit Committee2. Nomination and remuneration committeeNumber of Meetings attended duringthe year 14 of 14No. of Equity Shares held in theCompany 10Disclosures of relationship betweenDirectors inter-se Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi is not related to any other Director of the CompanyTerms and Conditions of appointmentor re-appointmentalong with details of remunerationsought to be paid and remunerationlast drawn by such person

Details regarding terms and condition of appointment are given in item No. 4 as set out in thenotice of AGM.
By Order of the Board of Directors of

DBL Infra Assets Private Limited

Sd/-
Pragya Raghuwanshi
Company Secretary

M. No. A52982
CIN: U74110MP2010PTC023673
Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan
Singh Gate Chuna Bhatti,
Kolar Road Bhopal, MP-462016
Place: Bhopal
Date: 08.09.2022

Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road , Bhopal – 462016
Ph.No. 0755-4029999, Fax: 0755-4029998 E-Mail: dblinfraassets@gmail.com



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U74110MP2010PTC023673Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal 462 016, Madhya PradeshTel No.: +91 755 -4029999Website: www.dbiapl.com, Email Id: dblinfraassets@gmail.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
12TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(PLEASE FILL ATTENDENCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL)

Registered Folio No. / DP ID No./Client ID No.
Name and Address of the Member(s)

Joint Holder 1

Joint Holder 2
No. of shares heldI/We hereby record my/our presence at the 12th Annual General Meeting of the Company held at Plot No. 5, Inside GovindNarayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal (M.P) 462016 on Friday, September 30, 2022 at 10.00 a.m., Bhopal,Madhya Pradesh.

…………………………………............ ...........................................Member’s/Proxy’s name in Block Letters Member’s/Proxy’s Signature----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------
Note:

 Please read the instructions mentioned in the notes of Notice of 12th Annual General Meeting dated September 08, 2022.
 Only Member/Proxy can attend the Meeting. No minors would be allowed at the Meeting
 Member / Proxy wishing to attend the Meeting must bring this attendance slip to the meeting and handover at the entrance,duly filled in and signed.
 Joint shareholders may obtain additional Slip at the venue of the meeting.
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12TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
FORM MGT-11
PROXY FORM(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration)Rules, 2014]CIN U74110MP2010PTC023673Name of the company DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITEDRegistered office Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal 462 016,Madhya PradeshName of the Member(s :Registered Address :E-mail ID :DP ID: ………………………………………………………... Folio No./ Client ID:……………………………………………I/We, being the member (s) of …………............................. shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint1. Name : ............................................Address :Email Id :Signature : ............................................., or failing him/her

2. Name: .............................................Address:Email Id :Signature:............................................., or failing him/heras my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 12th Annual General Meeting of theCompany to be held at Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal 462 016, Madhya Pradeshon Thursday, September 30, 2022 at 10.00 a.m and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicatedbelow:
Sr. No. RESOLUTIONS

Ordinary Business:1 Ordinary Resolution:To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone & Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date along with the Cash Flow Statement and notesforming part of accounts together with the Reports of Directors’ and the Auditors’ thereon.2 Ordinary Resolution:To Re-appoint Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi (DIN: 00039944), who retires by rotation, as Director, who retires byrotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.3 Ordinary Resolution:To consider and approve the appointment of Statutory Auditor of the Company.4 Special Resolution:To Considered and approved the limit of RS. 4355.00 Crores under section 185 of Companies Act, 2013 forproviding loans/guarantee/securities to any of Subsidiary Companies and/ or Associate Companies and/or anyother Company.5 Special Resolution:Considered and approved the investment of funds by way of providing promoter contributions in the form ofEquity, Optionally Convertible Debentures and Compulsory Convertible Debentures, providing UnsecuredLoans and to provide/give Undertakings, Guarantee and Securities in connection with credit facilities/loans tobe availed by DBL-Siarmal Coal Mines Private Limited (DSCPL).Signed this …………day of ……………..2022Signature of members ……………………..Signature of Proxy holders (s)………………….Reference Folio No. / DP ID & Client ID…………………..No. of shares ……………
AffixRevenueStamp Rs.1/-



Note:1. The Proxy form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not lessthan 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.2. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.3. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a proxy on behalf of members notexceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights.A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single personas proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.4. For Resolutions, Notes, please refer to the Notice of 12th Annual General Meeting.
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CIN: U74110MP2010PTC023673Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal 462 016, Madhya PradeshTel No.: +91 755 -4029999Website: www.dbiapl.com, Email Id: dblinfraassets@gmail.com

Form MGT-12
Polling Paper[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1)(c) of the Companies (Management andAdministration) Rules, 2014]CIN U74110MP2010PTC023673Name of the Company DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITEDRegistered Office Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, KolarRoad, Bhopal 462 016, Madhya Pradesh

POLLING PAPERName of the Shareholder (s) (in block letters)Name of the Joint holder (s), if anyPostal addressClass of shares EquityNumber of shares heldRegistered Folio No/Client IdDP ID
I/We hereby exercise my/ our vote in respect of the Ordinary/ Special Resolution enumerated below, by conveying my/ourassent or dissent to the Resolutions by placing a tick (√) mark at the appropriate box:

Ite
m
No

Item Details No. of
shares
held by
me

I assent
to the
Resolutio
n

I dissent
from the
Resoluti
on

Ordinary Business
1. Ordinary Resolution:To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone & ConsolidatedBalance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022 and Statement of Profit and Lossfor the year ended on that date along with the Cash Flow Statement andnotes forming part of accounts together with the Reports of Directors’and the Auditors’ thereon.
2 Ordinary Resolution:To Re-appoint Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi (DIN: 00039944), who retires byrotation, as Director, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offershimself for re-appointment.
3

Ordinary Resolution:To consider and approve the appointment of Statutory Auditor of theCompany.
4 Special Resolution:To Considered and approved the limit of RS. 4355.00 Crores undersection 185 of Companies Act, 2013 for providingloans/guarantee/securities to any of Subsidiary Companies and/ orAssociate Companies and/or any other Company.
5

Special Resolution:Considered and approved the investment of funds by way of providingpromoter contributions in the form of Equity, Optionally ConvertibleDebentures and Compulsory Convertible Debentures, providingUnsecured Loans and to provide/give Undertakings, Guarantee andSecurities in connection with credit facilities/loans to be availed byDBL-Siarmal Coal Mines Private Limited (DSCPL).
Date:
(Signature of Shareholder)
Place:
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DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED

BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Members,
DBL Infra Assets Private LimitedYour Directors have pleasure in presenting their 12th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company andthe IndAS Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022.
FINANCIAL RESULTSThe performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 is as under:

(Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 31st

March, 2022
(Standalone)

Year ended 31st

March, 2022
(Consolidated)

Year ended 31st

March, 2021

Total Income 442.84 11,311.51 1.21Total expenses 6038.39 19,562.12 0.37
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (5595.55) (8,250.61) 0.84Exceptional items - - -
Profit / (loss) before tax (5595.55) (8,250.61) 0.84
Tax expense:Current tax 0.04 0.04 -Deferred tax - (89.92) -
Profit/(Loss) for the year from continuing
operations

(5595.59) (8,160.72) 0.84

Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit orloss(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not bereclassified to profit or loss
B (i) item that will be reclassified to profit or loss(ii) Income tax relating to items that will bereclassified to profit or lossShare of Profit (Loss) of Associates

----

---(7,451.74)

----
Total Comprehensive Income for the period
(Comprising Profit (Loss) and other
Comprehensive Income for the period)

(5595.59) (15,612.47) 0.84

Earning per equity shares
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

(279.78)
(279.78)

(780.62)
(780.62)

0.04
0.04

*During the Previous Financial Year 2020-21, the Company does not have any subsidiary, therefore accounts
were not consolidated.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY’S WORKING DURING THE YEAR

DBL Infra Assets Private Limited (DIAPL) is involved in the business of infrastructure facility.During the financial year 2021-22, the total income stand at Rs. 442.84 Lakhs. However, the Company has incurred NetLoss after tax amounting to Rs. 5595.59 Lakhs. Your directors are hopeful for the bright future of the company in theyears to come.



DIVIDENDIn view of losses incurred during the year, your directors did not recommend any dividend for the financial yearended 31st March, 2022
CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY

EquityDuring the period under review, there has been no change in the Capital structure of the Company. AuthorizedCapital of the Company is Rs. 2,00,00,000 (Two Crores only) ranking paripassu with the existing equity shares.As on March 31, 2022, none of the directors of the Company hold any instrument convertible into equity shares ofthe Company.
Status of Shares in D-mat FormAs on March 31, 2022, the Company has 2000000 paid up equity shares.  The details of the dematerialised andphysical shares are as under:

Sr. No Capital Details No. of shares % of Total issued Capital1 Held in dematerialised form in CDSL 0 0.002 Held in dematerialised form in NSDL 2000000 1003. Physical 0.00 0.00
Total 2000000 100.00

DebenturesDuring the period under review, the Company has issued and allotted 7027 senior, rated, freely transferable, listed,redeemable, non-convertible debentures on a private placement basis, in two tranches i.e. 5827 and 1200debentures on August 31, 2021 and October 28, 2021which were listed on BSE Limited on September 1, 2021 andNovember 1, 2021respectively. Details are mentioned below:

ISIN
Face Value

per Security
Allotment /
Issue Date

Date of
Maturity /
Conversion

Maturity % /
Maturity
Amount per
Security

Total Issue
Size

INE0IJE08011 10,00,000 31-Aug-2021 28-Aug-2026 10,00,000 5,82,70,00,000INE0IJE08011 10,00,000 28-Oct-2021 28-Aug-2026 10,00,000 1,20,00,00,000
Further as per SEBI circular: SEBI/HO/MIRSD/CRADT/CIR/P/2020/207 dated October 22, 2020, your Companyhas deposited Rs. 7,02,700/ - (Rupees Seven Lakhs Two Thousand Seven Hundred only) in favour of BSE Limitedfor Recovery Expense Fund.
ReservesDue to loss, the Company has neither created nor transferred any amount to Debenture Redemption Reserve asper Section 71(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.
DepositsThe details relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Act,-(a) accepted during the year: NIL(b) remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year: NIL(c) whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon during the yearand if so, number of such cases and the total amount involved: NIL



GENERAL DISCLOSURESDuring the year under review, the Company has not entered into any transactions which covered under the followingprovisions and no disclosure or reporting is required:(i) As per rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the Company has not issuedequity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise;(ii) Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act and rules made there under.(iii) As per rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the Company has not issuedshares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme;(iv) As per rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the Company has not issuedequity shares under the scheme of employee stock option;(v) As per rule 16(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, there are no voting rightsexercised directly or indirectly by the employees in respect of shares held by them. The Company does nothave any scheme of provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees for thebenefit of employees;(vi) No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board;(vii) There is no Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated by and against the Company under theInsolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC);(viii) No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact theCompany's going concern status and operations in future.(ix) There is no one time settlement of loans taken from banks and financial Institutions;(x) There is no amount of unpaid/unclaimed dividend and shares which are required to be transferred in IEPF(Investor Education and Protection Fund) as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, the name of the Company has been changed from High Fly Airlines Private Limitedto DBL Infra Assets Private Limited and the Company has received a fresh certificate of Incorporation fromRegistrar of Companies, Gwalior on July 6, 2021. Also, the Company has obtained the approval from Registrar ofCompanies to changed its object from Airlines Services to carry on the Infrastructure related work w.e.f July 15,2021 and the Memorandum and the Articles of the Company were changed accordingly.During the period under review, Dilip Buildcon Limited has acquired the 100% shareholding of the Company onAugust 5, 2021. By the virtue of the said acquisition your Company has become a wholly owned subsidiary of theDilip Buildcon Limited.Further, the Registered Office of the Company was shifted from E-5/99, Arera Colony, Bhopal (M.P.) to Plot No. 5,Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Kolar Road, Chuna Bhatti, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh- 462016
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, SECURITY AND INVESTMENTBeing an Infrastructure Company, the Company is exempted under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 withrespect to any loan made, any guarantee given or any security provided or any investment made by a Company.However, the details of loan, guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013forms part of Financial Statements.
HOLDING COMPANYDilip Buildcon Limited along with its nominee has acquired the 100% shareholding of the Company on August 5,2021. By the virtue of the said acquisition your Company has become a wholly owned subsidiary of the DilipBuildcon Limited.



DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY:

a) During the year under review, shares subscribed/acquired are mentioned below:

S.
No.

Name of the Company Status Type
of
shares

Ope
ning
Bala
nce
as
on
01.0
4.20
21

No. of
Shares
allotted/
acquired
during
the year

Closing
balance
of
shares

% of
holding
acquired
as on
March
31, 2022

1 DBL Rewa Sidhi Highways PrivateLimited Subsidiary Equity NIL 111727* 111727 70%2 DBL Bangalore Nidagatta HighwaysPrivate Limited Associate Equity NIL 158905* 158905 49%3 DBL Bellary Byrapura HighwaysPrivate Limited Associate Equity NIL 367776* 367776 49%4 DBL Byrapura ChallakhereHighways Private Limited Associate Equity NIL 357730* 357730 49%5 DBL Gorhar Khairatunda HighwaysPrivate Limited Associate Equity NIL 346993* 346993 49%6 DBL Nidagatta Mysore HighwaysPrivate Limited Associate Equity NIL 417772* 417772 49%7 Dodaballapur Hoskote HighwaysPrivate Limited Associate Equity NIL 90396* 90396 49%8 Narenpur Purnea Highways PrivateLimited Associate Equity NIL 71896* 71896 49%9 Pathrapalli Kathghora HighwaysPrivate Limited Associate Equity NIL 76581* 76581 49%10 Repallewada Highways Limited Associate Equity NIL 88534* 88534 49%11 Dhrol Bhadra Highways Limited@ Associate Equity NIL 62348* 62348 35.12%
*Includes nominee shareholders acquired from Dilip Buildcon Limited.

@ During the year, Dhrol Bhadra Highways Limited has allotted 62348 equity shares to DBL Infra Assets Private Limited
by way of preferential allotment

(b) Statement of the Subsidiaries & AssociatesAs on March 31, 2022, the Company has 1 (One) Indian Subsidiary i.e. DBL Rewa Sidhi Highways Private (DRSHPL)Limited. And 10 (Ten) Associate Companies.All aforesaid Companies are unlisted except one company which is debenture listed companies under the provisionsof SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015.  There has been no change in the nature of business activities of any of thesubsidiaries.In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has prepared a Consolidated FinancialStatements of the Company and all its Subsidiaries and associates, is forming part of the Annual Report. As per theprovisions of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, aseparate statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of the Subsidiary is prepared in FormAOC-1 and the same is annexed to this Annual Report.
PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES INCLUDED IN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Subsidiary Company:

(i) DBL Rewa Sidhi Highways Private Limited (DRSHPL)DRSHPL was incorporated as special purpose vehicle on April 11, 2018, to undertake the project of “Construction ofChurhat bypass including Tunnel on Rewa Sidhi section of NH 75E from chainage 33.200 to chainage 55.400 (designlength 15.350 km.) in the state of MP on Hybrid Annuity Mode.” The Company (DIAPL) has transferred 111727 Equity



shares including its nominees to DBL Infra Assets Private Limited on August 31, 2021. DRSHPL has become theAssociate of the Company.During the period under review, DRSHPL has achieved revenue from operations of Rs. 10857.99 Lakhs and hasincurred Net Loss after Tax of Rs. 2565.13 Lakhs.
Associates Companies:

(i) DBL Nidagatta Mysore Highways Private Limited (DNMHPL)DNMHPL was incorporated as special purpose vehicle on April 09, 2018 to undertake the project of “Six Laning ofNidagatta-Mysore Section from Km 74.20 to Km 135.304 of NH-275 in the State of Karnataka to be executed on HybridAnnuity Mode.” The Company (DIAPL) has acquired 417772 Equity shares (49%) including its nominees from DilipBuildcon Limited on August 31, 2021.During the period under review, DNMHPL has achieved revenue from operations of Rs. 54038.62 Lakhs and hasincurred Net Loss after Tax of Rs. 5126.55 Lakhs.
(ii) Narenpur  Purnea Highways Private Limited (NPHPL)NPHPL was incorporated on October 07, 2020 under the Companies Act, 2013 having its registered office situated atPlot no. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal 462 016, Madhya Pradesh. NPHPL isinvolved in the business to undertake the project of “Construction and upgradation of NH - 131A from Km 34.600(design Ch: 6.000) near Narenpur to Km 79.970 (design Ch: 53.000) near Purnea to 4 lane standard and from Km79.970 (design Ch: 53.000) to Km 82.000 (design Ch: 55.000) near Purnea to 2 lane with paved Shoulders standardin the State of Bihar on Hybrid Annuity Mode.” The Company (DIAPL) has acquired 71896 Equity shares (49%)including its nominees from Dilip Buildcon Limited on October 29, 2021.During the period under review, NPHPL has achieved revenue from operations of Rs. 54034.49 Lakhs and hasincurred Net Loss after Tax of Rs. 1831.10 Lakhs.
(iii) Repallewada Highways Limited (RHL)RHL was incorporated on October 13, 2020 under the Companies Act, 2013 having its registered office situated atPlot no. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal 462 016, Madhya Pradesh. RHL isinvolved in the business to undertake the project of “Four laning of NH-363 from Repallewada (Design Km42.000/Existing Km 288.510) to Telangana/Maharashtra Border (Design Km 94.602/Existing Km 342.000) (DesignLength = 52.602 Km) in the State of Telangana under NH (O) on Hybrid Annuity mode (HAM).” The Company (DIAPL)has acquired 88534 Equity shares including its nominees from Dilip Buildcon Limited on October 29, 2021.Repallewada Highways Limited has been converted from Private to Public and has received the conversion certificatefrom Registrar of Companies, Gwalior on March 24, 2022.During the period under review, the Company has achieved revenue from operations of Rs.32996.56 Lakhs and hasincurred Net Loss after Tax of Rs. 1432.16 lakhs.
(iv) DBL Byrapura Challakere Highways Private Limited (DBCHPL)DBCHPL was incorporated as special purpose vehicle on April 11, 2018, to undertake the project of “four laning ofByrapura to Challakere section of NH-150 A, from km. 308.550 to km. 358.500 in the state of Karnataka underBharatmala Pariyojna on Hybrid Annuity Mode.” The Company (DIAPL) has acquired 357730 Equity shares includingits nominees from Dilip Buildcon Limited on August 31, 2021.During the period under review, DBCHPL has achieved revenue from operations of Rs. 6762.57 Lakhs and has earnedNet Profit after Tax of Rs.3040.59 Lakhs.
(v) Dhrol Bhadra Highways  Limited (DBHL)DBHL was incorporated on December 29, 2020 under the Companies Act, 2013 having its registered office situatedat Plot no. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal 462 016, Madhya Pradesh. DBHPLis involved in the business to undertake the project of “Four Laning of Dhrol – Bhadra Patiya section of NH-151A(Between Ex. Km 5+700 to Km 13+600 of SH-25) and Bhadra Patiya – Pipaliya Section of NH-151A (Between Ex.Km73+000 to Km. 44+800 and Ex. Km. 38+350 to 24+000 of CSH-6) in Gujarat through Public Private Partnership (PPP)(the “Project”) on design, build, operate and transfer (the “DBOT Annuity” or “Hybrid Annuity”) basis.” DBHL hasbeen converted from Private to Public and has received the conversion certificate from Registrar of Companies,Gwalior on March 24, 2022.  Further to inform you that Dhrol Bhadra Highways Limited has issued and allotted 62348equity shares by way of preferential allotment to DBL Infra Assets Private Limited.



During the period under review, DBHL has achieved revenue from operations of Rs. 16572.22 Lakhs and has incurredNet loss after Tax of Rs.492.98 Lakhs.
(vi) DBL Bangalore Nidagatta Highways Private Limited (DBNHPL)DBNHPL was incorporated as special purpose vehicle on March 23, 2018 to undertake the project of "Six-laning ofBangalore-Nidagatta, km 18.000 to km 74.200 of NH-275 in state of Karnataka to be executed on Hybrid AnnuityMode.” The Company (DIAPL) has acquired 158905 Equity shares including its nominees from Dilip Buildcon Limitedon August 31, 2021.During the period under review, DBNHPL has achieved revenue from operations of Rs. 24885.94 Lakhs and hasincurred Net Loss after Tax of Rs. 5727.52 Lakhs.
(vii)DBL Gorhar Khairatunda Highways Private Limited (DGKHPL)DGKHPL was incorporated as a special purpose vehicle on April 04, 2018, to undertake the project of “Six laning ofGorhar to Khairatunda section of NH-2 from km.320.810 to km. 360.300 in the state of Jharkhand to be executed onHybrid Annuity mode.” The Company (DIAPL) has acquired 346993 Equity shares including its nominees from DilipBuildcon Limited on September 22, 2021.During the period under review, DGKHPL has achieved revenue from operations of Rs. 7249.30 Lakhs and has earnedNet Profit after Tax of Rs. 363.81 Lakhs.
(viii) DBL Bellary Byrapura Highways Private Limited (DBBHPL)DBBHPL was incorporated as a special purpose vehicle on July 10, 2018 to undertake the project of “four laning fromKm. 253.600 to Km. 308.550 of Bellary to Byrapura Section of NH-150(A) on Hybrid Annuity Mode in the State ofKarnataka.” The Company (DIAPL) has acquired 367776 Equity shares including its nominees from Dilip BuildconLimited on August 31, 2021During the period under review, DBBHPL has achieved revenue from operations of Rs. 15148.30 Lakhs and hasincurred Net Loss after Tax of Rs. 936.49 Lakhs.
(ix) Pathrapali-Kathghora Highways Private Limited (PKHPL)PKHPL was incorporated as a special purpose vehicle on May 07, 2020 to undertake the project of "Four lane withpaved shoulder configuration of Pathrapali-Kathghora (Km. 53.300 to Km. 92.600) Pkg-II of Bilaspur-Kathghorasection of NH-111 (New NH-130) in the State of Chhattisgarh under Bharatmala Pariyojna on Hybrid Annuity Mode."The Company (DIAPL) has acquired 76581 Equity shares including its nominees from Dilip Buildcon Limited onOctober 29, 2021.During the period under review, the Company has achieved revenue from operations of Rs. 19634.28 Lakhs and hasincurred Net Loss after Tax of Rs. 1248.92 Lakhs.
(x) Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Private Limited (DHHPL)DHHPL was incorporated on September 25, 2020 under the Companies Act, 2013 having its registered office situatedat Plot no. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal 462 016, Madhya Pradesh. DHHPLis involved in the business to undertake the project of “4 laning from km. 42.000 to km. 80.00 of Dodaballapur Bypassto Hoskote section of NH-648 (Old NH-207) on Hybrid Annuity Mode under Bharatmala Pariyojna in the state ofKarnataka (Package-II).” The Company (DIAPL) has acquired 90396 Equity shares including its nominees from DilipBuildcon Limited on October 29, 2021.During the period under review, the Company has achieved revenue from operations of Rs. 35556.92 Lakhs and hasincurred Net Loss after Tax of Rs.1955.96 Lakhs.
TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUNDDuring the period under review, there is no amount of unpaid/unclaimed dividend which is required to transfer inIEPF (Investor Education and Protection Fund) as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.



MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH
HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORTDuring the year under review and the date of report, there is no material change and commitments made which affectthe financial position of the Company. Except that the Company has entered into Shared Service Agreements witheleven companies for providing certain services by the Company (Service Providers) to the project Companies:

The details of the companies and project details are as under:

S. No Name  of the Company
1 Bangalore Malur Highways Limited
2 Bangarupalem Gudipala Highways Limited
3 DBL Poondiyankuppam Highways Limited
4 DBL Viluppuram Highways Limited
5 Dhrol Bhadra Highways Limited
6 Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Private Limited
7 Narenpur Purnea Highways Private Limited
8 Malur Bangarpet Highways Limited
9 Repallewada Highways Limited
10 Pathrapali-Kathghora Highways Private Limited
11 Sannur Bikarnakette Highways Limited

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.The Company has designed and implemented a process driven framework for Internal Financial Controls ("IFC")within the meaning of the explanation to Section 134(5)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(5)(viii) ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board is of the opinion that the Company has sound Internal FinancialControl commensurate with the nature and size of its business operations and operating effectively and no materialweakness exists. The Company has a process in place to continuously monitor the same and identify gaps, if any, andimplement new and/or improved controls wherever the effect of such gaps would have a material effect on theCompany's operations. This process includes the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate InternalFinancial Control that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,including adherence to company's policies, safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds anderrors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and timely preparation of reliable financial information,as required under the Act.The Board of Directors of the Company have adopted various policies like Related Party Transactions Policy, VigilMechanism Policy, Policy to determine Material Subsidiaries and such other procedures for ensuring the orderly andefficient conduct of its business for safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, theaccuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controlsystem and suggests improvements to strengthen the same. The Company has robust management informationsystem, which is an integral part of the control mechanism.
DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTUREThere are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the goingconcern status and Company’s operations in future.
RISK MANAGEMENTThe Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key businessobjectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigatingactions on a continuing basis. The Company has adopted the risk management policy which includes identification ofelements of risk, if any, which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company in order to avoidevents, situations or circumstances which may lead to negative consequences on the Company's businesses, anddefine a structured approach to manage uncertainty and to make use of these in their decision-making pertaining toall business divisions and corporate functions. Therefore, a mechanism to inform the Board about risk assessment



and minimization procedures and periodical review to ensure that executive management controls risk by means ofa properly designed framework is in place.
AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

Statutory Auditors & their reportM/s N.K. Rajani & Co, Chartered Accountants, Bhopal (ICAI Firm Registration No. 008422C) were appointed as theStatutory Auditors of the Company in the Ninth Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 28th September, 2019to hold the office until conclusion of the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the calendaryear 2024.However, N.K. Rajani & Co, Chartered Accountants, Bhopal have tendered there resignation on February 11, 2022 andM/s. Mukund M. Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (ICAI Firm Registration No. 106655W) were proposedto be appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2021-22 and to hold office till theconclusion of next Annual General Meeting of the Company, subject to the approval of the shareholders in generalmeeting. The shareholders in its meeting held on May 10, 2022 approved the appointment of M/s. Mukund M. Chitale& Co., till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the Financial Year 2022.M/s. Mukund M. Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai have audited the books of accounts of the Companyfor the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and have issued the Auditor's Report there on. There are no qualificationsor reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers in the said report. Further, no fraud has been reported by theAuditors to the Audit Committee or the Board during the period under review.The Auditor's Report, read together with the notes on financial statements are self-explanatory and hence do not callfor any further comments under section 134 of the Act.Further, the Company has obtained a certificate for their independence and eligibility for their appointment asStatutory Auditors, and the same are within the limits as specified in section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Cost Auditors & its reportPursuant to the provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable rules and provisions, ifany, the requirement of Cost Audit is not applicable to the Company.
Secretarial Audit & Auditor’s ReportPursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Board ofDirectors has appointed M/s Piyush Bindal and Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Bhopal as SecretarialAuditor of the Company to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2021-2022. On the basis of the saidappointment, M/s Piyush Bindal and Associates Practicing Company Secretaries, Bhopal  has issued the SecretarialAudit Report for the financial year 2021-2022 in form MR-3 which  is annexed to the Board's Report as Annexure-1which is self-explanatory and do not call for any further explanation of the Board.
Internal AuditorsDuring the period under review, as per the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicablerules and provisions, if any. The Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 08, 2022 has appointed M/s.Sahni Hasija & Co. Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No. 019535C), as an Internal Auditor to conductinternal audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23.
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGOThe particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreignexchange earnings and outgo etc. does not apply to the Company.The particulars as required to furnish for the year 2021-22 are mentioned below:

S. No. Particulars Comments
(A) Conservation of energy In view of business activities, theCompany is not a manufacturingCompany and using very less powerfor its business activities hence; it isnot beneficial for the interest of thecompany to take substantial stepsfor the conservation of energy
(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;(ii) the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternatesources of energy;(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment
(B) Technology absorption



(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption The Company uses latesttechnology and equipment in itsbusiness. Further the Company isnot engaged in any manufacturingactivity.
(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, costreduction, product development or import substitution;(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the lastthree years reckoned from the beginning of the financialyear)-(a) the details of technology imported(b) the year of import(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has nottaken place, and the reasons thereof; and(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development During the year the Company hasnot spent any amount towardsresearch and developmentalactivity.
(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo Inflow Out FlowThe Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflowsduring the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during theyear in terms of actual outflows 0.00 0.00

BOARD OF THE COMPANY

a) Constitution of the Board

The composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Section149 of the Companies Act, 2013. As on 31st March, 2022 the Company’s Board comprises of 3 (Three) Directors,comprising of One Non-Executive Director and 2 (Two) Non- Executive Independent Directors.The Board is satisfied that the current composition reflects an appropriate mix of knowledge, skills experience,expertise, diversity, and Independence. The Board provides leadership, strategic guidance, an objective andindependent view to the Company’s management while discharging its fiduciary duties, thereby ensuring that themanagement adheres to the high standards of ethics, transparency, and disclosure. The Directors on the Board of theCompany as on the date of the Report are as follows:1. Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi - Non- Executive Director2. Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey - Non- Executive Independent Director3. Mr. Ashwini Verma - Non- Executive Independent Director
b) Changes in the composition of board of directorsDuring the Financial Year under review, following changes were made in the composition of Board of Directors of theCompany:1. Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey was appointed as an Additional Director in the category of Non-executive Director onFebruary 11, 2022 and his appointment was regularized by the Shareholders of the Company in the Extra-OrdinaryGeneral Meeting held on March 16, 2022.2. Mr. Ashwini Verma was appointed as an Additional Director in the category of Nonexecutive Director on February11, 2022 and his appointment was regularized by the Shareholders of the Company in the Extra-Ordinary GeneralMeeting held on March 16, 2022.3. Mrs. Seema Suryavanshi, tendered her resignation from the position of Director (Non-executive) of the Companywith effect from February 11, 2022. The Board members placed on record its sincere appreciation for the valuableservices rendered by Mrs. Seema Suryavanshi during her tenure as a Non-Executive Director of the Company.
c) Changes in the key managerial personnel of the company:

During the year under review, following changes were made in the positions of Key Managerial Personnel of theCompany1. Mrs. Pragya Raghuwanshi was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company with effect from August 06, 2021.2. Mr. Mayank Jiniwal was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from August 06, 2021.



d) In addition to the above following changes took place after the year under review:No change took place after the end of year under review.
e) Directors seeking re-appointmentIn terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi (00039944) Director of the Companywill retire by rotation and being eligible, offer himself for reappointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.The Board recommends his re-appointment for the consideration of the Members of the Company at the ensuingAnnual General Meeting.In case of appointment/re-appointment of Directors, the details of respective Directors as stipulated underRegulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations are included in the Notice of Annual General Meeting.
f) Women Independent DirectorPursuant to SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, your Company is a ‘high value debt listed entity’ and is required toappoint Women Independent Director. However, the compliance with the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is on a‘comply or explain’ basis until March 31, 2023 and on a mandatory basis thereafter. The Board is under the processto find a suitable candidate.
g) Independent Directors and their DeclarationThe Company has appointed 2 (two) Independent Directors which are in accordance with the requirement of the SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015.The terms and conditions of appointment of the Independent Directors are placed on the website at the web link:
https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspxAll the Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) ofthe SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. As per the SEBI (LODR)Regulations 25 (8) states that every Independent Director, at the first meeting of the Board in which he participatesas a Director and thereafter at the first meeting of the Board in every financial year, or whenever there is any changein the circumstances which may affect his status as an independent director, submit a declaration that he meets thecriteria of independence as provided in clause (b) of sub regulation (1) of regulation 16 and that he is not aware ofany circumstance or situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact his abilityto discharge his duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence and the board ofdirectors of the company shall take on record the declaration and confirmation submitted by the independent directorunder sub-regulation (8) after undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the same.In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors possess the requisite expertise and experience (Including theproficiency of the independent director as ascertained from the online proficiency self-assessment test conducted bythe Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs notified under sub-section (1) of section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 andare the persons of high integrity and repute. They fulfill the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015 and the Rules made thereunder and are independent of the management.Further, as per the Companies (Creation and Maintenance of Databank of Independent Directors) Rules, 2019 andCompanies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, the declarationreceived from the Independent Directors of the Company related to online Proficiency Self-Assessment Test arementioned below:

Sr. No Name of Independent Directors
Applied online for

inclusion of name in
data bank

Cleared the
online

Proficiency test

Exemption
category1 Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey 07.02.2020 N.A Yes2 Mr. Ashwini Verma 05.02.2020 09.01.2021 -

MEETINGS OF THE BOARDThe Company prepares the schedule of the Board Meeting in advance to assist the Directors in scheduling theirprogramme. The agenda of the meeting is circulated to the members of the Board well in advance along withnecessary papers, reports, recommendations and supporting documents so that each Board member can activelyparticipate on agenda items during the meeting.



The Board met 14 (Fourteen) times during the Financial Year 2021-22 viz 24.06.2021, 13.07.2021, 14.07.2021,15.07.2021, 26.07.2021, 05.08.2021, 06.08.2021, 16.08.2021, 31.08.2021, 03.09.2021, 28.10.2021, 12.11.2021,11.02.2022 and 21.03.2022.The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days.The details of attendance of the Directors of the Company are as under:
Sr. No. Name of the Directors Category Attendance

Held Eligible to
Attend

Attended1 Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi Non- Executive Director 14 14 142 Mrs. Seema Suryavanshi Non- Executive Director 14 13 133 Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey Non- Executive IndependentDirector 14 2 24 Mr. Ashwini Verma Non- Executive IndependentDirector 14 2 2
INFORMATION AVAILABLE FOR THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARDThe Board has complete access to any information within the Company. The Company has provided inter aliafollowing information:
 Financial results of the Company, its Subsidiaries;
 Minutes of meetings of the Board, Committees, resolutions passed by circulations and minutes of the meetings ofthe Board of Subsidiary Companies;
 Periodic compliance reports which includes non-compliance, if any;
 Disclosures received from Directors;
 Related party transactions;
 Regular business updates;
 Report on action taken on last Board Meeting decisions;
 Various Policies of the Board;
 Code of Conduct for the members of the Board;
 Discussion with the Auditors and the audit committee members.
PROGRAMME FOR FAMILIARIZATION OF DIRECTORSThe Company conducts familiarization programme for all the directors at the time of their appointment and also atregular intervals to enlighten the directors regarding their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company and thenature of the industry in which the Company operates, the business model of the Company etc. The details regardingthe familiarization programme conducted during the year are put up on the website of the company and can beaccessed at the following weblink: https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx
GOVERNANCE CODES

(a)     Code of Business Conduct & EthicsThe Company has adopted Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management (“the Code”) which isapplicable to the Board of Directors and all Employees of the Company. The Board of Directors and the members ofSenior Management Team of the Company are required to affirm Compliance of this Code. The Company has receivedthe annual affirmation declaration from the Board of Directors and Senior Management. The Code requires Directorsand Employees to act honestly, fairly, ethically and with integrity, conduct themselves in professional, courteous andrespectful manner. The Code is displayed on the Company's website at the weblink: https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx
b)    Conflict of InterestsEach Director informs the Company on an annual basis about the Board and the Committee positions he occupies inother Companies including Chairmanships and notify changes during the year. The Members of the Board whiledischarging their duties, avoid conflict of interest in the decision-making process.  The Members of Board restrictthemselves from any discussions and voting in transactions in which they have concern or interest.
c) Insider Trading CodeThe Company has adopted a Code of conduct for prevention of Insider Trading (“the Code”) in accordance with theSEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, amended time to time (The PIT Regulations). This Code isdisplayed on the Company's website at the weblink: https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx



The Company has also formulated 'The Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished PriceSensitive Information (UPSI)' in compliance with the PIT Regulations. This Code is displayed on the Company'swebsite at the weblink https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspxFurther pursuant to the amendments in SEBI (PIT) Regulations, 2018, the Company has also formulated Policy forProcedure of Inquiry in case of Leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and constituted an EnquiryCommittee to take appropriate action on becoming aware of leak of unpublished price sensitive information andinform the Board promptly of such leaks, inquiries and results of such inquiries. The Policy is displayed on theCompany's website at the weblink : https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspxThe Enquiry Committee shall consist of minimum 3 (three) Members of the Board of Directors of the Company.During the period under review, the Company has not received any complaints related to leak of Unpublished PriceSensitive information. No meeting was held during the financial year 2021-22.
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARDThe Board of Directors has constituted various mandatory and other Committees to deal with specific areas andactivities which concern the Company and requires a closer review. The Committees are formed with approval of theBoard and function as per the applicable provisions. These Committees play an important role in the overallmanagement of day-to-day affairs and governance of the Company. The Board Committees meet at regular intervalsand take necessary steps to perform its duties entrusted by the Board. The Minutes of the Committee Meetings areplaced before the Board for noting. During the year under review, the Board has the following Committees:
A) Audit CommitteeThe Audit Committee was constituted by our Board in accordance with Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015. The composition, quorum, terms of reference, functions, powers, roles and scope are in accordance with theRegulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. All the members of the committee are financially literate, Mr.Satish Chandra Pandey, Mr. Ashwini Verma and Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi possesses financial expertise.Since the Committee was constituted on March 21, 2022 by the Board of Directors of the Company, the AuditCommittee met once during the Financial Year 2021-22 on March 21, 2022.
The members of the Committee, Meetings and Attendance during the financial year 2021-22 are mentioned
below:

Sr.
No.

Name of Directors Designation Number of meetings
attended1 Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey Chairman -Independent Director 1 of 12 Mr. Ashwini Verma Member -Independent Director 1 of 13 Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi Member Director 1 of 1Mrs. Pragya Raghuwanshi, Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee

The terms of reference of Audit Committee Inter-alia, includes the following :(i) The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;(ii) Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process;(iii)Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;(iv) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;(v) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;(vi) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;(vii) Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;(viii) Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information toensure that the financial statement is correct sufficient and credible;(ix) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;(x) Reviewing with the management the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon beforesubmission to the board for approval with particular reference to:a.   Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the board's reportin terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;



b.   Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;c.   Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;d.  Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;e.  Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;f.   Disclosure of any related party transactions;g.   Qualifications in the draft audit report;(xi) Reviewing with the management the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;(xii) Reviewing with the management the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (publicissue, rights issue, preferential issue etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in theoffer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency, monitoring the utilizationof proceeds of a public or rights issue and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps inthis matter;(xiii) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;(xiv) Reviewing with the management performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of the internalcontrol systems;(xv) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit functions, if any, including the structure of the internal auditdepartment, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department reporting structure, coverage andfrequency of internal audit;(xvi) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;(xvii) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there issuspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matterto the board;(xviii) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences about the nature and scope of audit as wellas post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;(xix) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;(xx) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;(xxi)Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the financefunction or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background etc. of thecandidate;(xxii)Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.The Audit Committee, shall mandatorily review the following information:1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee) submitted bymanagement;3. Management letters of internal control & weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor shall be subject to review bythe Audit Committee.”
Details of establishment of vigil mechanism for directors and employeesThe Company has formulated the Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy. The policy aims for conducting theaffairs in a fair and transparent manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity andethical behaviour. All permanent employees of the Company are covered under the Vigil Mechanism Policy.

A mechanism has been established for employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspectedfraud or violation of Code of Conduct and Ethics. It also provides for adequate safeguards against the victimizationof employees who avail of the mechanism and allows direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee inexceptional cases. Further, no whistle blower complaint has been received during the financial year 2021-22. ThePolicy is available on the website of the Company at the weblink: https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx.



B) Nomination and Remuneration CommitteeThe Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted by the Board in accordance with the provisionof Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The composition, quorum, terms of reference, functions, powers,roles and scope are in accordance with Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Policy is available onthe website of the Company at the weblink: https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspxSince the Committee was constituted on March 21, 2022 by the Board of Directors of the Company, the Nominationand Remuneration Committee met once during the Financial Year 2021-22 on March 21, 2022.
The members of the Committee, Meetings and Attendance during the financial year 2021-22 are mentioned
below:

Sr.  No. Name of Directors Designation Number of meetings
attended1 Mr. Ashwini Verma Chairman – Independent Director 1 of 12 Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey Member - Independent Director 1 of 13 Mr.  Dilip Suryavanshi Member - Director 1 of 1Mrs. Pragya Raghuwanshi, Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee

The terms and reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are mentioned below:i. Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a directorand recommending to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, executive directors keymanagerial personnel and other employees;ii. Formulating of criteria for evaluation of the independent directors and the Board;iii. Devising a policy on Board diversity;iv. Identifying persons who qualify to become directors or who may be appointed in one level below the keymanagerial personnel in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommending to the Board their appointmentand removal, and carrying out evaluations of every director’s performance;v. Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensation matters;vi. Determining the company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for executive directors includingpension rights and any compensation payment, and determining remuneration packages of such directors;vii. Determining compensation levels payable to the key managerial personnel and other staff (as deemednecessary) which shall be market-related, usually consisting of a fixed and variable component;viii. Reviewing and approving compensation strategy from time to time in the context of the then current Indianmarket in accordance with applicable laws;ix. Performing such other activities as may be delegated by the Board of Directors and/or are statutorilyprescribed under any law to be attended to by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
C) Stakeholder's Relationship CommitteeStakeholder’s Relationship Committee has been constituted by the Board in accordance with Regulation 19 of SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015Since the Committee was constituted on March 21, 2022 by the Board of Directors of the Company, theStakeholder’s Relationship Committee met once during the Financial Year 2021-22 on March 21, 2022.



The members of the Committee, Meetings and Attendance during the financial year 2021-22 are
mentioned below:

Sr.
No.

Name of Directors Designation Number of meetings
attended1 Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi Chairman –Director 1 of 12 Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey Member - Independent Director 1 of 13 Mr. Ashwini Verma Member - Independent Director 1 of 1Mrs. Pragya Raghuwanshi, Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee

The terms of reference of the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee of the Company includes the following:a) Consider and resolve grievances of the security holders of the Company, including complaints related to thetransfer of shares, non-receipt of annual report and non-receipt of declared dividends; andb) Carrying out any other function as prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (ListingObligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
Status of Investor Complaints for Debt for the Financial Year 2021-22During the year no complaint was received, attended and resolved by the Company. Details of the same arementioned below:

Particulars Pending as on
date of
allotment of NCD
(September 01,
2021)

During the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2022

Pending as on
March 31,
2022

Received Redressed

Shareholder
Complaints

NIL NIL NIL NIL
D)Risk Management CommitteeThe Risk Management Committee has been constituted by the Board in accordance with Regulation 21 of SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015. Based on the skills/expertise/competence of the Board of Director in their functionalareas, your Company has done the Competency mapping of the directors of the Company and their efficient services/guidance used for the improvement in the organization.Since the Committee was constituted on March 21, 2022 by the Board of Directors of the Company, the met onceduring the Financial Year 2021-22 on March 21, 2022.

The members of the Committee, Meetings and Attendance during the financial year 2021-22 are
mentioned below:

Sr.  No. Name of Directors Designation Number of meetings
attended1 Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi Chairman –Director 1 of 12 Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey Member - Independent Director 1 of 13 Mr. Ashwini Verma Member - Independent Director 1 of 1Mrs. Pragya Raghuwanshi, Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee

Terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee are mentioned below:1. Laying down risk assessment plan, minimisation procedures and informing the Board of the same;2. Framing, implementing, reviewing and monitoring the risk management plan for the Company; and



3. Performing such other activities as may be delegated by the Board and/or are statutorily prescribed under theListing Regulations.The Committee has formulated a Risk Assessment and Management Policy to create and protect shareholders'value by minimizing threats or losses and identifying and maximizing opportunities. Risk Management Policy ofthe Company outlines different kinds of risks and risk mitigating measures to be adopted by the Board. TheCompany has adequate internal control systems and procedures to combat the risk.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)As per the provisions of section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company does not fulfil the criteriastipulated under section 135 (1) of Companies Act, 2013.  Hence the provisions with respect to Corporate SocialResponsibility are not applicable to the Company.
ENQUIRY COMMITTEE FOR LEAK OF UNPUBLISHED PRICE SENSITIVE INFORMATIONPursuant to the amendments in SEBI (PIT) Regulations, 2018, the Company has also formulated Policy forProcedure of Inquiry in case of Leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and constituted an EnquiryCommittee to take appropriate action on becoming aware of leak of unpublished price sensitive information andinform the Board promptly of such leaks, inquiries and results of such inquiries.The composition of Enquiry Committee for leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive information comprises of 3 (three)Members. Details of the same are mentioned below:

S. No. Name Designation1 Mr. Ashwini Verma Chairman – Independent Director2 Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey Member - Independent Director3 Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi Member - Director
The Company has not received any Complaint related to leak of unpublished price sensitive information of theCompany hence no meeting was held during the financial year 2021-22.
ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONThe Board has laid down the manner in which formal annual evaluation of the performance of the Board andindividual directors has to be made. It includes circulation of questionnaires to all Directors prepared pursuant tothe provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, for evaluation of the Board, Board composition and its structure,its culture, Board effectiveness, Board functioning, information availability, etc. These questionnaires also coverspecific criteria and the grounds on which all directors in their individual capacity will be evaluated.All Directors responded through a structured questionnaire giving feedback about the performance of the Board,its Committees, Individual Directors.
Criteria for evaluation of Board as a whole

i. Board Composition & Quality;
ii. Board Meetings;
iii. Committees;
iv. Core Governance & Compliance; and
v. Risk Management.
Criteria for evaluation of Committees

i. Structure of committees;
ii. Appropriateness of delegation of responsibilities by the Board to its committees;
iii. Composition of the committees;
iv. The meetings are conducted in a manner that ensures open communication and meaningful participation;
v. The amount of information received is appropriate for discussion and decision making purposes;
vi. The reporting by each of the Committees to the Board is sufficient;
vii. Committees takes effective and proactive measures to perform its functions; and
viii. The frequency of the Committee meetings is adequate.



Criteria for evaluation of the Independent Directors

i. Knowledge & Expertise;
ii. Participation in Board Meetings;
iii. Interpersonal Skills;
iv. Professional Conduct & Independence;
v. Diligence;
vi. Roles & Responsibilities; and
vii. Disclosure & Reporting.
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-
SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188:During the year under review, the Company has not entered into a contract or arrangement with related partyreferred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence AOC -2 is not applicable to theCompany.
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURESDisclosures of Loans and advances in the nature of loans to Subsidiaries/Associates/others by name and amountat the year end and the maximum amount of loans outstanding during the year has been disclosed in FinancialStatements annexed with this Report. The said disclosures are also given in the Financial Statements of Subsidiary/Associate Companies.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEESDuring the period under review, there are no employees employed in the Company.Hence, the disclosure required as per provisions of sec 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(2) of theCompanies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to theCompany.
ANNUAL RETURNPursuant to the provisions of section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return of the previous year hasbeen uploaded on the website of the Company i.e. www.dbiapl.com and for the F.Y. 2021-22 the same will beuploaded on website after filing with Registrar of Companies.
COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGSThe Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable SecretarialStandards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems are adequate and operatingeffectively.
DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENTPursuant to the requirement under clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, withrespect to the Directors' Responsibility Statement the Directors confirm that:
(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along withproper explanation relating to material departures;(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments andestimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Companyat the end of the financial year and of the loss of the Company for that period;(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records inaccordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing anddetecting fraud and other irregularities;
(d) There is no fraud which are reportable by the Auditors to the Central Government, and which needs to bedisclosed in the Board report during the year under review.
(e) the directors had prepared the annual accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 on a goingconcern basis; and



(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws andthat such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013Dilip Buildcon Limited being the holding Company of our Company has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibitionand redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women atWorkplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under. InternalComplaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. Allemployees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) of the Company are also covered under the said policy.During the period under review, there are no employees employed in the Company.
DEBENTURE TRUSTEE OF THE COMPANYPursuant to Regulation 53(e) of (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, name of thedebenture trustees with full contact details to be disclosed.   The details of the same are mentioned below:

Axis Trustee Services LimitedThe Ruby, 2nd Floor (SW)29, Senapati Bapat Marg,Dadar West, Mumbai -400028Email id :rahul.vaishya@axistrustee.inTel No. +91 022-62300451Website :www.axistrustee.com
CREDIT RATINGSThe Company has been assigned a credit rating of CARE BBB+; Stable by CARE Ratings on senior, listed, securedredeemable, non-convertible debentures (NCDs).
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTSThe Company is grateful to its customers, shareholders, suppliers, financial institutions, bankers, Central and StateGovernments for their constant support to the Company. The Directors also place on record their deep appreciationof the contribution made at all levels the consistent growth of the Company was made possible by their hard work,loyalty, dedication, co-ordination and support.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
DBL Infra Assets Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Dilip Suryavanshi Ashwini Verma
DIN: 00039944 DIN: 06939756
Director Independent Director

Place: Bhopal
Date: 08.09.2022

ANNUEXURES:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the lt/lembers of DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Standalone lnd AS financial statements

1. Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Standalone lnd AS financial statements of DBL lnfra Assets
Private Limited ("the company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at f\ilarch 31 2022, the
Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone
lnd AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Standalone lnd AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the lndian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read
with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (,,lnd AS,') and
other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, ofthe state of affairs ofthe company as
at lvlarch 31,2022, its loss and total other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the Standalone lnd AS financial statements in accordance with the
standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the companres Act, 2013 ("the Act").
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone lnd AS financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of
Chartered Accountants of lndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit ofthe Standalone lnd AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on Standalone lnd AS financial
statements.

3. Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the standalone lnd AS financial statements of the current year. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone lnd AS financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Sr.
No.

Key Audit Matter Auditor Response

1 lnvestment in Subsidiary and Associate
Companies and its impairment

Our audit procedures included the following:

oObtained an understanding from the
management , assessed and tested the

t*-

2nd Floor, Kapur House,
Paranjape B Scheme '

Road No. 1 , Vile Parle (E),

Mumbai 400057
r. 91 22 2663 3500 .

www.mmchilale.com
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(Refer to Accounting Policy under Note 1 .1 0
- "lnvestments in Subsidiaries, Associates
and Joint Ventures")

The Company has equity investments in
subsidiaries and associate companies.

The Company accounts for equity
investments in subsidiaries and associate
companies at cost (subject to impairment
assessment).

For investments carried at cost amounting to
Rs.39,290.58 lacs where an indication of
impairment exists, the carrying value of
investment is assessed for impairment and
where applicable an impairment provision is
recognised.

The accounting for investments is a Key
Audit lvlatter as the determination of
recoverable value for impairment
assessment involves significant
management judgement and estimates such
as future expected level of operations and
related forecast of cash flows, market
conditions, discount rates, terminal growth
rate etc.

design and operating effectiveness of the
Company's key controls over the
impairment assessment.

. Evaluated the Company's process
regarding impairment assessment by
involving auditor's valuation experts, as
applicable to assist in assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation model
including the independent assessment of
the underlying assumptions relatlng to
discount rate, terminal value etc.

. Assessed the carrying value of all
individually material investments, where
applicable, to determine whether the
valuations performed by the Company
were within an acceptable range
determined by us and the auditor's
valuation experts.

o Evaluated the cash flow forecasts (with
underlying economic growth rate) by
comparing them to the approved budgets
and our understanding of the internal and
external factors.

. Checked the mathematical accuracy of the
impairment model and agreed the relevant
data on sample basis with the latest
budgets, actual past results and other
supporting documents.

o Evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures
made in the Standalone lnd AS Frnancial
Statements.

Based on the above procedures
performed, we did not identify any
significant exceptions in the management's
assessment in relation to the carrying value
of equity investments in subsidiary and
associates.

4 lnformation other than the Standalone lnd AS financial statements and Auditor's report
thereon
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Directors Report but does not
include the Standalone lnd AS financial statements and our auditor,s report thereon. These
reports are expected to be made available to us after the date of our auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Standalone lnd AS financial stateme
and we will not express any form of assurance thereon.

nts does not cover the other information

).e
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When we read the other information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there is
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance and determine the actions under the applicable laws and regulations.

Management's responsibility for the Standalone lnd AS financial statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone lnd AS financial statements thai give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in lndia, including the lnd AS accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the companies (lndian Accounting standards) Rules, 20i5 as
amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application oi appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and piudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Standalone lnd AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the standalone lnd AS financial statements, company,s Board of Directors is
responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the goingloniern basis of ,ccornting
unless management either intends to liquidate the corirpany or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company,s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone lnd AS financial statementsour objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone lnd AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards
on auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered materiar if, individually or in the asgr;g"i",1hey 

"orroreasonably be expected to influence the economic decisrons of users taken-o-n tn-e Uasis dttnese
Standalone lnd AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on auditing, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

-We 
also:

5

hd

ln connection with our audit of the Standalone lnd AS financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information identified above when it becomes availabie and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone lnd AS
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
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ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. under section i43(3Xi) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to standaleon lnd AS financial statements and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

i)

ii)

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

iv) conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to
continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Standalone lnd AS
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of bur audiior,s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone lnd AS fjnancial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone lnd AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, theplanned scope and timing of the audit and iignificant auoii rinoiigs, incr;ding;nt ;ilnit"rnt
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

we also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied withrelevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with'them a
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to near on oui inJep*o"nce,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the companies (Auditor's report) order, 2020 (.the order,,) issued by the central
Government of lndia in terms of sub-section ('1 1 ) of section 143 of the nct, wJ live-in ttre"Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the ordei.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of ourknowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of Standalone tno RS iinanoat
statements.

W-
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i) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone lnd AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
m isrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance sheet, statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive lncome, the
statement of cash Flow and statement of changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone lnd AS financial statements comply with the lnd AS
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

9'r'

e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2022,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31 , 2022,lrom being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

0 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone lnd
AS financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in "Annexure 2" to this report.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the company has not paid any
remuneration to its directors during the year.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 1'l of the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations gjven to us:

i. The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone lnd AS
financial statements.

ii The Company did not have any longterm contracts including derivative contracts for whrch
there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in wiiting or ot-herwisle, tnat the
lntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in ot[er persons oi entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (,,uitimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of ir,e uiiirrt"
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented that no funds have been received by the company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), incruding foreign entities ("Funding earties;;, *it tn.
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that ine comiany shali, whetner,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified'in any manner
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For Mukund N/. Chitale & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 106655W

$,bb-
(S. M. Chitale)
Pa rtner
tt/I No. 111383

UDrN. 221 1 1 383AMJCEK4026

Date: May 27,2022
Place. Mumbai

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause iv (a) and iv(b) contain any material misstatement.
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Annexure 1 to the lndependent Auditor's Report of even date on the Standalone lnd AS financial
statements of DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited

Referred to in paragraph [6(i[ under Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of
our report of even date

According to the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that:

(i) a)

b)

c)

d)

i) The Company does not have any items of Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-of-
use Assets and hence reporting under paragraph 3(i)(axi) ofthe Order are not applicable
to the Company.
ii) The Company does not have any lntangible Assets and hence reporting under
paragraph 3(ixaxii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any items of Property, Plant and Equipment and RighLo!
use Assets and hence reporting under paragraph 3(i)(b) ofthe Order are not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given by the Company, there are no
immovable properties and accordingly the reporting under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any items of property, plant and Equipment and Right of Use
assets and accordingly the reporting under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the ordei are not
applicable to the Company.

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances
in nature of

loans
Aggregate amount granted /

rovided durin
- Subsidiaries 4,530.00

(ii)

(iii)

e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated or is pending against the company during the year for holding any benami
property under the Benami rransactions (prohibition) Act, 19gg (45 of 1989) ind rules
made thereunder.

a) The company does not hold any inventories and, accordingly, the reporting under
paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits at any point of time during
the year, from banks or financial institutions and, accordingly, the iequirements under
paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

a) During the year, the company has provided loans to one subsidiary company and ten
associate companies; the details are as given below. The company hls not provided any
guarantee, or security to any entity.

Rs. ln lakhs

,rt"'

the year
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- Joint Ventures
- Others
Balance outstanding as at
balance sheet date in respect
of above cases
- Subsidiaries 4,530.00
- Associates 25,734.99
- Joint Ventures
- Others
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- Associates 25 734.99

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit
procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that terms and conditions on which the
unsecured loans have been granted to companies listed in the table above are not, prima
facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, interest free unsecured loans
given to subsidiary companies and associates are repayable on demand and thus there is
no stipulated repayment schedule of principal and interest.

d) Since the repayment schedule for loans granted is not stipulated, no loan is overdue.

e) There are no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during
the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to setge the overdues
of existing loans given to the same parties. Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph
3(iii)(e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

f) The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand. The details arementioned below:

Rs. !n Lakhs
Particulars All parties Promoters Related

Parties
Agg regate amount of loans /
advances in nature of loans

on demand 30,264.99
Agreement does not specify any

term period ofS or repayment (B)
Total (A+B)

30,264.99
Percentage of Ioans / advances in
nature of loans to the totat loans

100.00%

us, the Company
Act, with respect

(iv) ln our opinion and according to the information and expranations provided tohas complied with the provisions of section 1g5 ano igo of the bompanies
to unsecured loans granted, lnvestments made and guarantees given.

le
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The company has not accepted any deposits within lhe meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly,
the reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the central Government has not
specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act, for the services of
the company. Accordingly, reporting under the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the order are not
applicable to the Company.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is generally
regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Service Tax, lncome Tax, and any other statutory dues. As informed to us,
there were no dues on account of Provident Fund, Employees'State lnsurance, Sales Tax,
Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax and Cess.

There were no undisputed amounts in respect of Goods and service Tax, provident Fund,
Employees' State lnsurance, lncome Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise
Duty, Value Added rax, cess and any other statutory dues which were due for more than
six months from the date they become payable as at the year end.

b) According to the records examined by us and as perthe information and explanations given
to us, there were no statutory dues as at March 31, 2oz2 which have not been depo-sited
on account of disputes.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments underthe lncome TaxAct, 1961 (43 of 1961)
during the year. Accordingry, reporting under crause 3(viii) of the order are not.'ppri.ruL to
the Company.

a) According to the information.and expranations given to us and records examined by us, thecompany has not defaurted in repayment of roins or other bonowings 
"rl. 

in" prir"i.t 
"tinterest thereon to any lender.

b) According to the information and expranations given to us the company has not beendeclared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial i'nstitution.

c) According to the information and expranations given to us and records examined by us, theCompany has applied the term loans (debentu-re, is"rea during the y"r;, i;;;;il;;"r"for which the loans were obtained.

d) According to the information and expranations given to us the company has not raised anyfunds on short term basis during thi year. n"ioroingrv, ,"porting undlr cL;r" iixltoj 
"ithe Order are not applicable to the Compan

e) According to the information and expranations given to us.the company has not taken anyfunds from any entity or person on account of oi to meet the obrigations of its subsidiaries.Accordingry, reporting under crause 3(ixyley orthe orJeiaie not appticabre to the company.

|e
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f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company raised loans during
the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary and joint ventures as per detaili
below:

Rs. ln lakhs

a) According to the information and explanations given to us th,e company has not raised anymoney by way of initial public offer or further pri,ri. .ri"it,nctuding ifiiir.jrrrents) during
ffJffi, Accordinslv, reporting *o.l.rr..iJi*i'oi',1'," order are not appricabre to the

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made anypreferential allotment or private piacement oJ shares or convertiblq debentures (fully,partially or optionally convertibrel dunng tne vear] icllroingty, reporting under the crause3(x)(b) of the Order are not ,ppiicaOie to the Company.

,'r'

Nature of
Loan taken

Name of
the lender

Amount
of loan

Name of the
Company

Relation Details of
security
pledged

Remarks

Debentures

Various
Debenture

holders 70,270.00

DBL Rewa Siddhi
Highways Pvt
Limited Subsidiarv
DBL Bangalore
Nidagatta
Highways Pvt
Limited Associate
DBL
Byrapura
Highways
Limited

Bellary

Pvt

Associate

DBL Byrapura
Challakhere
Highways Pvt
Limited

Associate

DBL Nidagatta
Mysore Highways
Pvt Limited

Associate

DBL Gorhar
Khairatunda
Highways pvt
Limited

Associate

Pathrapali
Kathghora
Highways pvt Ltd

Associate

Narenpui- purnea
Highways Pvt Ltd

Associate

RepallewaOa 
.-

Highways Ltd
Associate

Pvt Ltd

Dodaballapur
Hoskote

Associate

Dhrol
H

Bhadra
Ltd

Associate

(x)
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based upon the audit
procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the Standalone
lnd AS financial statements, we report that no fraud by the company and no fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the central Government, during the year and upto the date of this ieport by the
Statutory Auditors.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no whisfle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

The company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the order
are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with section 171 and i}g oithe Act where applicable and the details have
been disclosed in the notes to the standalone lnd AS financial statements, 

". 
r.qrir.J ov 1.,"

applicable accounting standards.

a) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provision ofhternal audit is not appricabre to the company and iccordingry-reporting ,n0". 
"trrr"3(xiv)(a) of the Order are not appticable to tire iompany.

b) According to the information and expranations given by the management, the provision ofinternar. audit is-not appricabre to the compariy and lccordingr/reportin! ,ni"i 
"i"r."3(xiv)(b) of the Order are not appticabte to the iom jany.

According to the information,and expra.nations. given by the management, the company hasnol entered into any non-cash transactions wiftiJiec#rs or persons connected with them asreferred to in section 192 of the Act.

a) According to the information and expranations given to us, the provisions of section 45-rAof the Reserve Bank of rndra Acr rbsa aie noiaJpri"-"rr" to the company. Accordingry,reporting under crause 3(xvi)(a) of the order ". "Ii"ppii"rure 
to *," il.rirni'"""'""

b) According to the information,and expranations given to us, rhe company has conducted anyNon- Banking Financiar or Housing rinance ;;ilriilr:' Accordingry, reporting under theclause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are noi applicable to tf,L-Company.

c) According to the information and €xpranations given to us, the company is not a corelnvestment companv (crc) as defin;d in the ;Jgri"iion. ,.0" by the Reserve Bank of
l|! }"fffi;,'slv, 

reportins under rhe ;.;r; iil;(.;'or tre orJir are'."ilpp'ri."Jr" t.

d) The Group does not have any crc^as part ofthe group and hence reporting under paragraph3 (xvi)(d) is not applicable to-the Conlpanv 
' ' - .,r vvP qr r\

w,/TI
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(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has incurred cash
losses during the current financial year amounting to Rs55.95lakhs. No cash loss has been
incurred in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating
that the company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they
fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to set
aside any amount towards corporate social Responsibility (csR). Accordingly, reporting
under paragraph 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 106655W

g'hL-
(S M. Chitale)
Partner
l\L No.'l11383

UDIN : 221 1 1383AMJCEK4O26

Date. May 27,2022
Place: Mumbai

(xviii) There has been a resignation of the Statutory Auditors during the year and no issue, objection
or concern was raised by the erstwhile auditor.
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Annexure 2 to the lndependent Auditor's Report of even date on the standalone lnd As
financial statements of DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited

Referred to in paragraph [6(ii)(f)] under Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
of our report of even date

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls with reference to standalone lnd AS Financial
statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the companies Act, 2013 (,,the
Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone lnd AS Financial
statements of DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited ("the Company,,) as of March 31, 2022 in
conjunction with our audit of the Standalone lnd AS financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls
2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial

controls based on the internal control with reference to standalone lnd AS Financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the"Guidance Note") issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of Lndial 1iChl;. rn"s"responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of ioequate internatfinancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly ,nJ 

"ticiJnl"onor"t 
otits business, incruding adherence to company's poricies, 

-the 
sategu'a,ding-of iir'rrr"t., tn.prevention and detection of frauds and enois, t-he accuracy and comileteneJs or tirl accountingrecords, and the timerv preparation of reriabre financiai inrormatiSn,' as-ilq-;ir; 

' 
,n0", tneCompanies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility
3 our responsibility is to expre-ss an opinion on the company,s internal financial controls withreference to standalone lnd.AS Financial strt#"ni. i-seo on our audit. we conducted our auditin accordance with the Guidance ruot" rnJin" ij"nirrj. on Auditing as specified under section143(10) of the Act' to the extent 

"pprlcaore 
io an lio]t ot int"rn"r financial controls and bothissued by the rnstitute of charterei [.."r"t.rtr'"iiniir. rnor" standards and the GuidanceNote require that we comply with ethical ,;;;ii"r".ir' 

""0 
pran and perform the audit to obtainreasonable assurance about whether ao"ilrrl" i.i"rral financial controls with reference tostandalone lnd AS Financiat stat"ments w"-s- 

"li.[iiri,'"0 and maintained and if such controlsoperated effectively in all material respects.

our audit invorves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of thernternar financiar contrors svs[em witn rererence ii'rt"ri"r""" rnd AS Financiar statements andtheir operating effectiveness. our auait or-rniei,iriiirrr"iir'i""trors with reference to standaronelnd AS Financiar statements in.ruorJ ootrin]ng ,i'rri5lor.oing of internar financiar controrswith reference to standarone rnd AS Fi;;;;;rri;t;;;l:, ,.sessins the risk that a materiarweakness exists. and testino and. evaruating tle d!i;,i'.io op"r"rng effectrveness of internarcontror based on the assessEd rist. rne pro-ceir.r"JJi"ilo.o"pend on tne auoitoisjuogment,
X1;H*:Xg"_R1i::l:],:,,[il,.],"?il;i,il;;.",H,#!nt or,tne ilil;r,ili;;;6?nanciar
vve berreve that the audit 

",iq:n.: we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide alfl:jiffi,;X13"J#H,,[i"g".TS;;;; *:,?"Til:"ili"r contror. system witn ,."r5i"n." to

t$"-

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS
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4 A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone lnd AS Financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of Standalone lnd AS financial stltements for externjl purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
with reference to standalone lnd AS Financial statements includes thole policies and procedures
that ('1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide ieasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone lnd
AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordande with authorisations
of management and directors of-the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company,i
assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone lnd AS financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to standalone lnd AS
Financial statements
5 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone lndAS Financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper ,rr.g"rl.t overrideof controls, material misstatements due to erroi or fraud may occur and not oe"Jeiecteo ntso,projections of any evaluation ofthe internal financial controls with reference to itanJaione rno nsFinancial statements to fut}19 e-e!ogs are subject to the risk that the i.t"rrrrlin}liiclontrot withreference to standarone rnd AS Financiar itatements may become inaoequate uecause of

::ilrt,"?# 
conditions, or that the degree of .orpiirn." wittr ttre poti.i;;; ;;;;ures may

Meaning of lnternal Financial controls with reference to standalone lnd As Financ ial
statements

Opinion
6 ln our opinion, the company has,.in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controlssystem with reference to standalone tno ns rinaiciai statements and such internal financialcontrols with reference to standalone rno ns rinanciar statements were operating effectively asat lvlarch 31' 2022, based on the internal ."ntror *itt,'r"t"rence to standalone lnd AS Financialstatements criteria establish-ed bylte company 

"oniia"iing 
tn" 

"ssentiar 
components of internarcontror stated in the Guidance N_ote on'Ariit-oilrt"rr"r Financiar contrors over FinanciarReporting issued by the lnstitute ot Cfrarterea ncJornti,. ot tnOi..

For l\Iukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. i06655W

6ihb-
(S. M. Chitate)
Pa rtner
M. No. 111383
UDIN: 221 1.1 383AMJCEK4O26
Date: May 27,2022
Place: Mumbai



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED

(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Particulars 31 Ma.ch 2022 31 Match 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipmeni
Capilal!rcrk in progrcss

- Trade receivables

- Other FinancialAsset
Detered tax assets
Other non-curent asset

3

6

7

39,290.58

500

443_23

5.00

067
Total non-current assets 39.738_82 5.67

Current assets

- Trade receivables

- Cash and cash equivalent

- Other Financial Assets
Cunent tax asset (Net)
Other current assels

2

5
4

7

7466

265 55
30,264 99

112 03

51 23
138.76

Total current assets 30,717.23 189.98

TOTAL ASSETS 70,456.04 't95.6s

EQUITY AiID LlAAILlTIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Otherequity

8

9

200 00
(5,600.48)

200 00
(4.69)

Total Equity (5,400.48) 195.11

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilrties

Borro,lngs 10 70,270.04

Total non-current liabilities 70,270.0O

Current liabiliries
Financial liabilities

Borrowings
Trade payable
Total outstanding dues of micro and smallenterpnses
Total outstanding du6s of creditors otherlhan micro and

Other financial liabilities
Other cufient liabilities

TO

1l
12
13

112

22.11
8.23

5,5s5 06

050

004

Total current liabilities 5.586.52 0.54
TOTAL LIABILITIES 75.856.52 0.54

TOTAL EQUITY ANO LIABILITIES 70.456.O4 195.65

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

As per our Report ol even date

The notes on accounts lorm an integral part of financial

Rs. ln Lakh

1to29

tN-00

(Chief Finan Officer )

Foa and on behalt ofthe Board
For OBL lntra Assets Private Limited
CIN : U741 1oirP2010PTC023673Fo' UKUNDMCHTTALE&CO

Chartered Accountants
Fnm Regn No. 106655W *

Dilip Suryavanshi
(Drrecto0

I\,4 UM BAI

C H

?

Date: 27.05.2022
Placer Bhopal
Oale:27.O5.2022

grttlr-
#-far----

Alhwinive.ma
I (O'rector)

{n - oooass+o

",,"W*,*

S. M. Chitale
( Partner)
lvl.No 111383



D8L INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Statement of P.ofit & Loss for the year ended 3'l Match 2022

1to29

Rs in Lakhs

erma
(Director)

- 00039946

Secretary)

,!b,

For and on behalf of the Board
For DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited

CIN : U741 10MP2010PTC023673

\
--<t \-,'ry

Dilip Suryavanshi
(Oirector)

DtN - 00039944

Ahtl,.- ch/ 14,

r9

)!M U t/lBAl

Mayank niwal Prag
(Chief F inanca Officeo (Company

Place Bhopal
Dale 27.05 2022

Place: l,,lumbai
Dale: 27 05.2022

Particulars Notes Year ended
31 Match, 2022

Year ended
31 March, 2021

(t)

flr)
Revenue frorn Operatjons
Other incorhe

14
15

431.51
11 33 121

(lll) Total lncome (l+ll) 442.44 1.21
(tv) Expenses

Operatjng Expenses
Finance costs
Other expenses

16

17
18

405.62
5,630.24

2.52 0.37
Totalexpenses (lV) 6,038.39 0.37

M
(vl)

Profy(loss)before exceptional items and tax (lll-l\C

Exceptional items
(5,595.55) 084

lVD Profit / (loss) before tax (V) - (Vl) (5,595.55) 084
(vflr)

0.04
Tax expenses
(1) Cunent tax
(2) Defened tax

0x) Profit (Loss) for the year lrom continuing
operations [Vll - Vlll)

(s,59s.59) 0.84

(x) Other Comprehensive lncome
A (i) ltems that will not be reclassifed to profit or loss

(ii) lnmme tax relating to items that will not be
reclassifed to profit or loss
B (D ltems thatwillbe reclassifed to profit or loss
(ii) lncome tax relating to items that will be reclassilied
to proft or loss

(xt) Total Comprehensive lncome for the year
(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other
Comprehensive lncome for the year) (lX-X)

(5,59s.59) 0.84

0.04
004

(x[)
19

\279
\279

78)
78)

The notes on accounts form an integral part of
frnancial statements

As per our Report of even date

For N,IUKUN0 M CHITALE & CO.
Chaatered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 106655W

S. M. Chitale
( Partner)
lvl.No. 111383

Earnings per equity sharc (for continuing
operations)
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted



Particulars
For the year ended 3l

Merch2022
For the year ended 3l March

2021

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Profit / (Loss) before tax as per Prorit & Loss Account

Adjustments for:
lnterest lncome
Finance Cost

(5,595.s9)

(1 1.33)
5,630.24

0.84

(1.21)

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes

Adjusted for:
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Non- Current Assets
(lncrease)/Oecrease in Other Current Assets
(lncrease)/ Decrease in Loans and Advances
(lncrease)/Desease in Trade Receivables
lncrease/(Oecrease) in Otherfinanc.ial liabilities
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other curent liabilities
lncrease/(Decrease) in Provisions

23.33

(442.56)
(1 12.03)

(30,126.24)
(74.66)
21 .61

8.23
5.555.02

(0.37)

(0.67)
0.62

(0.04)

Net cash from Operating Activities before lncome Tax
lncome tax paid

(25,147.3',t) (o.47)

A Net Casn lrom Operating Activities (25,147.3064 (0.47

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase oF lnvestments
lnterest lncome

(39,290.s8)
1 1.33 1.2',1

B Net Cash from / (used in) lnvesting Activities (39,279.25 1.21

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from Long Term Borowings
Proceeds from Short Term Bonowings
Finance Cost

70,270.O0
1.12

(s,630.24)

c Net Cash from / (used in) Financing Activities 64,640.88

A+B+C Net lncrease / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

214.32

51.23

0.74

50./A

Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 265.55 5'1.23

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 3l March 2022

Closinq Cash and Cash Eouivalents
Cash in Hand
Bank Balance with Scheduled Banks

in Cunent Account
in Fixed Deposit Account

FoT MUKUND M GHITALE & CO.
Charlered Accountants

S. M. Chitale
( Partner)
M.No. 111383

For and on behalf of the Board
For DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited

CIN : U741 10MP2010PTC023673

3.'t6

in Lakhs

3.15

92.97
169.42

5.08
43.00

265.55 51.23

i. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirecl method as set out in lndian.Accounting Standard 7 -
Statement of Cash Flow.

ii. Figures in bracket indicale cash oumow

The notes on ac@unts form an integral part of linancial statements

As per our Report of even date

I to29

v- w----

DtN - 00039944

W*"",,

Dilip Suryavanshi
(Oirector)

Place: Bhopal

Ashwini Verma
(Oirector)

DtN - 00039946

MUMBAI
* *

\l\. CH/

Place: Mumbai
oate:27.05.2022 Oate.27.05.2022

Secretary)

Firm Regn.



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED

{Formerly Hlgh FlyAlrllnes Private Llnite.l)

Statement of changes in equlty forthe year ended 31March2022

A. Eoultv share crpltal

Balance ai the beginning of the cunenl reporting
Period

Changes in Equity Sharc
Capitaldue lo prior period

Restaled balance al lhe
beginning ofllle c!.renl

Chanses in equi9 share
capnal during the clnenl

Balance at the end of the
currenl rePorting Period

200.00 200 00 200 00

ln
Balance sl lhe b€ginning of lhe previous reporting

p€nod
Changes in Equity Share
Capitaldrre lo prior peiod

Restared balance al the
beginning of lhe previous

reporling penod

Changes in €quily share
capitelduring lne

Ba ance at rhe end ofthe
prev ous repod ng pe.iod

200 00 200.00

Reserves and Surolus
Total

Balance at beqinnino ofthe current vear {4.E9) {4.89)

OlhercomDrehensive income (nol of tax)

(5,595 59) (s,s95.59)

ToGl Com prehensive lncome for the year (5.595_591 (5.595.59|

Any olher chanoes (io be specilied)
Balance atend ofthe current vear (5.600.48t i5.600.48)

B. Other equlty

Balance as on 3'l March 2022

The notes refened to aboveform an integralpartof

Balance rs on 3, Mrrch 2021

Rs. in L.k
Reserves afld Surplus Total

Retaaned Earninqs
Balance at beqinninq ofthe currentyear (s.73) (5.73)

Prord or (toss)

Oher comprehensive income (net of lax)
084 084

Totrl coln prehens ive lncome for the vear 0.84 0.84

Anyolherchanoes (io be soecified)
Balance atend ollhe current year {4.89) I4.89)

1to29

As per our Reportoteven dale For and.n behalf of lhe Board
For DBL lnfra Assots Private Limited

CIN : U741 101\,4 P20'10PTC023673For MUKUNO lvl CHITALE & CO
Chartered Accountants

S. M. Chitale

[1No 111383

Oale 27 O5-2O22

*Y'
orrrp(fa(vanshr

(Dir€cto0

;{u--=
(oireclor)

N - 00039946

(Chiel Financial Offcer) (Com

Place: Bhopal
Oale 27.05.2022

Raghuwanshi

MUI!1BAIo

AC

C

a DIN - 000399:14

\\,," "

| 2oo.oo I



Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2022

'1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies

1.1 Company Overview

DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited (the'company') is domiciled in lndia with its registered office at Bhopal,
l\4adhya Pradesh, India. The Company has been incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956. The company is presently in the business of development of infrastructure facilities.

The company has changed its name from 'High Fly Airlines Private Limited'lo'DBL lnfra Assets Private
Limited' on 26th July 2021.

1.2 Basis of Preparation of financial statements

The Company's linancial statements have been prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting
Standards (lnd AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs under sections 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 20'16.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31"t March 2022 were approved for
issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 27rh May 2022.

1.3 Basis of accounting

The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention,
except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values in accordance with lnd
AS. Further, the guidance notes/ announcements issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia (lCAl) are also considered, wherever applicable except to the extent where
compliance with other statutory promulgations override the same requiring a different treatment.

1.4 Presentation of Financial Statements

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Changes in equity are prepared
and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act').
The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and
Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule lll to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the
financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified
Accounting Standards and lhe SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

(i) it is expected to be realized or settled, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the
company's normal operating cycle;

(iD it is held primarily for the purpose of being tradedi

(iiD il is expected to be realized or settled within twelve months from the reporting date; or

(iv) an asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless il is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for atleast twelve months from the reporting date

(u) in case of liability, the company does not have an uncondilional right to defer settlement
of the liability for atleast twelve months from the reporting date.

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

MUMBAI

AC
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

1.5 Current / Non-Current classifioation
An asset or liability is classified as 'current' when it satisfies any of the following criteria:



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

All assets and liabilities have been classitied as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out above which are in accordance with Schedule lll to the Act.

Operatinq cycle

Based on lhe nature of products and services of the Company and lhe normal lime between
acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined
its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current
and non-current

1.6 Use of estimates

The preparation of the tinancial statements in conformity with lnd AS requires management lo make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures
of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in

estimates are reflected in the rinancial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if
material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the Iinancial statements.

This note provides an overview of lhe areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or
complexity and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information
about each of these eslimates and judgements is included in the relevant note.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

A. Judgemenls in applying accounting policies

The judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see note below) that the Company
has made in the process of applying its accounting policies and that have a significant effect
on the amounts recognised in these financial statements pertain to useful life of assets. The
Company is required to delermine whether its intangible assets have indefinite or finite life
which is a subject matter of judgement.

B. Key source of estimation uncertainty

The following are lhe key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to
which components of the cost may be capitalized. Useful lives of tangible assets are
based on the life prescribed in Schedule ll of the Companies Act, 2013. ln cases, where
the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule ll, they are based on
technical advice, taking into accounl the nature of lhe asset, the estimated usage of the
asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated
technological changes, manufacturers' warranties and maintenance support.

M MBAI3
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2022

b) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary
escalation and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is
determined based on the prevailing market yields of lndian Government Securities as at
the Balance Sheet Date for the estimated term of the obligations.

c) Recognition of deferred tax assets

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised.

d) Recognition and measurement of other provision

The recognition and measuremenl of other provisions are based on lhe assessment of
the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances
known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may
therefore vary from the figure included in other provisions.

e) Discounting of long-term financial instruments

All financial instruments are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition.
ln case of financial instruments which are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost, interest is accrued using the effective interest method.

1.7 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presenled in lndian Rupees (lNR), which is also the Company's
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise
indicated.

Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized when it is possible that future economic benefits
associated with the item willflow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably.

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairmenl losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import dulies
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

lf significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounled for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the company. Advance given lowards acquisition of Property, plant and
Equipment outstanding at the reporting date are disclosed as capital advances under Non-Current
Assets.
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Depreciation is calculaled on cost of items of property, plant and equipmenl less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is generally
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Assets acquired under flnance leases are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the company
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which
asset is ready for use (disposed oD.

1.9 lntangible Assets

lntangible assets that the Company controls and from which it expects future economic benefits are
capitalised upon acquisition at cost comprising the purchase price and directly attributable costs to
prepare the assets for its intended use.

lntangible Assets is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized in the Statement of
Prolit and Loss in the same period

lntangible assets that have finite lives are amortised over their useful lives by the straight-line method.

l.l0lnvestments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint ventures

lnvestments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Vl/here an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the
investmenl is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amounl.

On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture, the difference between net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

l.l I lmpairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication thal an assel or
cash generating unit (CGU) may be impaired. lf any such indication exists, the company estim ates
the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU'S
net selling price or its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.
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Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic beneflts are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized in the
Statement of ProIit and Loss in the same period.

ln assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their presenl value using a
pre-tax discount rale that reflects current market assessments ofthe time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

lmpairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. They are allocated firsl to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of
the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assels, an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amounl
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l.l2 Financial lnstruments

lnitial Recognition

The Company recognizes linancial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrumenl. All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade
receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets thal are not at fair value through protit or loss
are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:-
i] Financial assets al fair value and ii] Financial assets at amortised cost. V\,/here assets are measured
at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of prollt and loss [i.e fair
value through profit or lossl, or recognised in other comprehensive income [i.e. fair value through other
comprehensive incomel. A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held
within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specilled dates to cash flows lhat are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Derecognition

The company derecognises a financial assel when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights lo receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retain substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

lmpairment of financial asset

For impairment of financial assets, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model. Following
financial assets and credit risk exposure are covered within the ECL model:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g.
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
that result from transactions that are within the scope of lnd AS 1 15.

The company follows 'simplified approach'for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables including receivables recognised under service concession arrangements.

The application of simplilied approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLS at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk
exposure, the company determines that whether there has been a signillcant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. lf credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, then lhe impairment loss is
provided based on lifetime ECL.
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that would have been determined, nel of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a ,inancial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
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Financial liabilities

Non-derivative financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
except for contingent consideralion recognized in a business combination which is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year
from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounls approximate fair value due to the short maturity of
these instruments.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
subslantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of lhe original liability and the recognition
of a new llability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Financiai assels and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an inlention either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and setlle the liabilities
simultaneously.

1.13 Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contraet conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified
asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ('ROU') and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the lerm ofthe lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made al or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus
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lnitial recognition

The company initially recognises borrowings, trade payables and related financial liabilities on the
date on which they are originated.

All other financial instruments (including regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets) are
recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which the company becomes a party to the
contraclual provisions of the instrument.

Offsetting of tinancial instruments
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any initial direct costs less any lease incenlives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Righlof-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the
fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. ln such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generatinq Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of lhese leases.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a
present obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Contingent liabilities are not
provided for and are disclosed by way of notes unless the possibility of outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote

lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost in the
statement of profit and loss.

1.15 Revenue recognition

Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue
and can be measured reliably.

lf the outcome of a construction contracl can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised in
profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract. The stage of completion is

assessed by reference to surveys of work performed. OtheMise, contract revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contracl costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable.

Revenue related to construction or upgrade services provided under a service concession
arrangement is recognised based on the stage of completion of the work performed. Operation or
service revenue is recognised in the period in which the services are provided by the company.

lnterest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest method.

'1.16 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
currency borrowings to the enent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in
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connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Ll7 Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to the equity
holders of lhe company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to
the equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at
fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed to have been converted as of lhe beginning of the period, unless issued at a later
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period.

l.l8 Cash Flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and Ilnancing activities of the Company are
segregated.

l.l9 Employee Benefits

Short Term Employment benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classilled as
short{erm employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost ofex-gratia
are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. A liability is

recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of pasl service provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Post Employment Employee Benefits

Retirement benefits to employees comprise paymenls lo government provident funds, gratuity fund
and Employees Slate lnsurance.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company's contribution to defined contributions plans such as Providenl Fund, Employee State
lnsurance are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year when the contributions lo the
respeclive funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the
respective Funds.

Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation. The Company's net obligation in respect of the gratuity
benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value.
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The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on lhe
market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive lncome. Net interest expense (income) on lhe
net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net
delined liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking
into account any changes as a result of contribution and benetit payments during the year. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in Statement of
Prolit and Loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benellt plan
when the settlement occurs.

l.20lncome Taxes

Current Tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax reffects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncerlainty, if any, related to income taxes. lt is measured using tax rates (and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

lvlinimum alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay income tax higher than that computed under IMAT,
during the year that MAT is permitted to be set off under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (specified year). ln
the year, in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an assel the said asset is
created by way of a credit to the Statement of profit and loss and shown as l\4AT credit entitlement.

The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of
l\4AT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the
Company will pay income tax higher than IVAT during the specified year.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried foMard tax losses and tax credits.
Deferred income lax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rales and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheel date and are expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or setfled. The
effect of changes in lax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or
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The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation by an independent actuary, using the projected unit credit method, which recognizes each
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlemeni and measures each
unit separately to build up the final obligation.

Actuarial gains/losses are recognized in the other comprehensive income.
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expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred
income lax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and lax losses can be utilized. The company
offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The income tax provision for the interim period is made based on the
best estimate of the annual average tax rate expected to be applicable for the full financial year.

1.21 Assets Held for Sale

Assets designated as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amounl at designation
and fair value less costs to sell.

1.22 F air Y alue measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transactjon to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

. ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or

. ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous markel must be accessible by the company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

For cash and other liquid assets, the fair value is assumed to approximate to book value, given the
short-term nature of lhese instruments. For those items with a stated maturity exceeding twelve
months, fair value is calculated using a discounted cash flow methodology.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset considers a market parlicipant's ability to
generale economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabiiities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the
fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaclion rather than continuing use and a sale is highly probable.
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4.4 Loans and advances to related oarties:

tn

31 March 2021 in

Note:- 5 Cash And Cash Equivalents
ln

Note :- 6 Other Financial Assets
ln

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 Match 2021
Advance Recoverable 5.00 5.00

Total 5.00 5.OO

Note :- 7 Other Current and Non Current Assets
ln

Type of Borrower Amount of loan
or advance in the

nature of loan
outstandino

Percentage to
the total Loans
and Advances
in the nature of

Promoter
Directors
KMPs
Related parties 30,264.99 100.00%

Total 30,264.99 't00.00%

Type of Borrower Amount of loan or
advance in the
nature of loan
outstanding

Percentage to
the total Loans

and Advances in
the nature of

Promoter 24.06 17.34Yo
Directors 114.70 82.660/o
KMPs
Related parties

Total 138.76 100.00%

Particulars 31 Ma?ch 2022 31 March 2021
Cash in hand
Balances with Banks :

- Current Account
- Fixed Deposits

3. 16

92.97
169.42

3.1 5

5.08
43.00

Total 265.55 51.23

Particulars 3l March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-current
Unamortised Processing Charges
MAT Credit Entitlement

442.56
0.67 0.67

Total Non-current 443.23 0.67
Current
Tax Deducted at sour@ and Advance Tax (net of taxes)
Duties and Taxes
Unamortised Processing Charges

9.72
89.65
12.65

Total Current 112.03

Total 555.26 0.67



(Rs. ln Lakhs

i. The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a fac€ value of Rs.10 each. Equity holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share

ii. 100% shares of the company has been pledged in favour of the Debenture trustee i.e. Axis Trustee Setuices Limited

b) Reconciliation of the no. of shares and amounts outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 202'l
Numbers Amount (Rs.) Numbers Amount (Rs.)

At the beginning of the year
lssued during the year
Outstanding at the end ofthe year

20,00,000 2,00,00,000.00 20,00,000 2,00,00,000.00

20,00,000 2,00,00,000.00 20,00,000 2,00.00,000.00

c Details ot shareholders holdin more than syo shares in the

'20 shares are held by individuals as nominees ofthe Company.

16,00,000 shares held by Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi and 4,00,000 shares held by Mrs. Seema Suryavanshi have been transferred to Dilip
Buildcon Limited on 5th August 202'1.

Particulars 31 Match 2022 3l March 202't
Authorised share Capital
50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. '10 each
(P.Y.50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)

500.00 500.00

500.00 500.00

lssued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 200.00
P.Y.20,00,000 u Shares of Rs. 10 each

200.00

Total 200.00 200.00

31 March 2022 31 March 202'lParticulars
Numbers % of holdinq Numbers % of holdinq

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Dilip Buildcon Limited"
Dilip Suryavanshi
Seema Suryavanshi

20,00,000 100.00%
16,00,000
4.00.000

0.00%
80.00%
20.000/0
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 8: Equitv Share Capital

a) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
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Particulars 31 March2022 31 March 2021
Non-currgnt

(a) SecurBd
Debenfures
13o/o 7027 Non convertible Oebenture of Rs. 1 0
Lakhs oach

70.270.OO

Total Non-Cunent Borowings

Less: Curent maturities of non4urent borowinqs

70,270 00

Non-curent borowinqs 70,270.OO

Curant
(a) Sscured

Curent maturities of Non Current borowings

(a) Unsecured
From Related Parties 't.'t2
Current borrowinqs 1.12

70.271.12

10,1 Details of terms of repayment and securities provided in respect of secured tem loans are as under:

Non Current Borowinos- Non Convertible Debentures

On 31st August, 2021 and 28th October 2021, lhe Company issued 7,027 Non Convertible Oebentures on pravate

placement basis at an issue prie of Rs. 10 lakhs per debenture for an aggregate consideration of Rs. 70,270.00 lakhs
The Debentures of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange.The Company has used the proceeds in

ac@rdance with the objects stated in the Pla@ment Document.

The securities orovided is as follows:
i) Pledge over 100% equity ofthe lssuer.

ii) Pledge on 49olo equity of the Specified Prcjocts to bs creatod by the lssuer (afrer transfer of 49% equity of the
Specified Prolects by DBL to the lssuer), subject to relevant NOC from the respective project lenders of the
Specified Projects within 90 days ftom Deemed Date of Allotment.

iii) Corporate guarantee/ Parent Undertaking from Dilip Buildmn Limited.

iv) A charge by way of a deed of hypothe€tion on the (i) debt seryice reserue account to be maintained by the
lssuer; (ii) lhe present and future identified bank ac@unts in which all the Receivables of the lssuer shall be
sedited including all future sale pro@eds to be reeived by lssuer upon sale of the Specified ProJects either into
the private lnvestment Trust ("lnvif) or to any third parly, and (iii) Company lntra Group Loans availed by the
Specified Projacts ftom the lssuer.

The details of redemotion is as follows:
i) Fi6t Face value redemption shall be on the date falling 39 months after the Deemed Date of Allotment and

thereafter each subsequent redemption shall be made at an ac@rdance with the Redemption Scheduie

ii) The debentures are to be redeemed at premium of Rs. 34,398.60 lakhs at the end of the term

iii) The details of redemption of principal value of debentures are as follows:

Sr.No. Redemption Dates Amount { in INR Lakhsl Redemption (%)
1 28-Nov-24 a 743 75 12 500/"

2 28-Feb-25 8 783 75 12 500/.

3 28-May-25 8 783.75 12 500/.
4 28-Auo-25 474375 12.500/o
5 28-Nov-25 8 783 75 12.500/.
6 2A-Feb-26 4.743.75

23+,tlay-26 8,783.75 12 500/0

28-Auq-26 8,783.75 '12.500/.

Total 70,270.OO 't00.00%

10.2 RepaymentSchedule:

(i) Financial Year 202'l-22

Particulars Beyond 3 Years Total Amount
ebentuaes 52 702.50 70.270.O0

Total 52,702.50 70,270.OO

10.3 Thereisnopendingsalisfaciionofchargeinrelationtoborrowingss,hichisyettoberegisteredwithRegistrarof
Companias beyond the statutory period.

year 1-3 years
17 ,567.50
1 7,567.50

MUMBAI

M.
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10.4 TheCompanyhasnotcreatedDebentureRedemptionResgrveduetoinadequacyofprofitsduringtheyear

T6rrl h6r6wihdc



DBL INFRAASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
lFormerly High FlyAirlin6 Private Limltod)

Notes to fi nancial statements forthe year ended 31Marcn?322

Note 11: Other Flnancirl llabllitieg

11.1 SundryCreditorsageing

Note '12: other current liabilities

Note 13r Provisions

ln

ln Lakhs

31 March 2022 31 Mar.h 2021

Current

Creditors lor Erpenses (Refer Nole 1 1 . 1 )
Sitting Fees PayaHe

1.15
0.5E
0.10

20.24

050

Total 22.1'1 0.50

SR No.
1-2 yea6 2-3 yea6 Morc than 3

Total

(ii) Olhers 0.5E 0.5E

liii) Disp'ned dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues Others

--

31 March 2022 3l March 2021

823

8.23

3'l March 2022 3'l March 2021

Cunent
Provision lor lncome Tax
Provision for Redemption of Debenlures 5.555 06

0.04

Total Current Drovisions 5 555 06 0.04

5,555.06 0.04

S

\'
rn
t-

{u



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 14 : Revenue from Operations

Note 15: Other lncome

Note 16 : Costs of Construction

Note 17 : Finance Costs

Note 18 : Other Expenses

ln Lakhs)

ln

ln

ln

ln

Particulars Year ended 31

March,2022
Year ended 31

March, 2021

(i) Contract Recelpts 431 .51

Total r+J't.5'l

Particulars Year ended 31

March,2022
Year ended 31

March,2021

(i) lnterest lncome 11.33 1.21

Total 1 1.33 1.2'l

Particulars Year ended 31

March,2022
Year ended 31

March,2O21

(D Subcontractorcharges 405.62

Total 4U5.62

Particulars Year ended 31

March,2022
Year ended 31

March,2021

(i) Bank Charges
(iD lnterest on TDS
(iii) Discounting of redemption premium on debentures

0.35
0.19

5,629.70

lotal 5,630.24

Particulars Year ended 3't
March,2022

Year ended 31

March,2021
(i)
(iD

(iiiD

(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viiii)
(ix)

Audit Fees (Refer Note 19)
GST Expenses
Miscellaneous expense
Fines and Penalties
Tour and Travel Expenses
Director sitting fees
Advertisement Expenses
Professional and Consultancy charges
Legal Fees

0.02
0.06
0.14
0.10
0.84
0.21
o.'t7

1.00 0.15

0.18

0.05

Total 2.52 o.3t



Rs. ln Lakhs

Rs. ln Lakhs

Particulars
Year ended 31 March,

2022
Year ended 31 March,

202'l

Audit Fees
For taxation matters

0.30
0.20

Total 1.00 0.50

Year ended 31 March,
2022

Year ended 3'l March,
2021

(5,595.59)
0.04

0.84

(5,s9s.63)

20,00,000

0.84

20,00,000

Profit / (Loss) for the year before tax
Less : Attributable Tax thereto
Profit / (Loss) after Tax

b) Weighted average number of equity shares used as
denominator

c) Basic earning per share of nominal value of Rs 10/- each

Particulars

a)

(27s.781 0.04

Ir,4 BA Itvl

c

ACc

op

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 19: Remuneration to Auditors

Note 20: Earninq per Share (Basic and diluted)

1.00



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITEO
(Fomerly Hish FlyAlrlln* Prlvare Lhitedt

Notes to financaal statement3 lor the year ended 3l March 2022

Note 21: Related oartv transaction

Name ot related parties

DBL Banaa ore Nidaaana Hiohwavs Pvr Lmiren

DBL Bvraoura Challakhere H ohwavs P\r1 Lrmned

OBL Nidaqana Mvsore Hiqhwavs Pv,l Limited
D8L Gorhar Kharatu.da Hiqhwavs Pv1 Limited
,alhraoalr Kahoho.a l_l ohwavs Pvt Ltd

Dhro Bhad.a Hlortuavs Lrd 35 00

Year ended 3l March 2021
Subsidiary / Associates Key man.gerialperson

24c6 240.,
11470

111.70 24.05 133_76

Year ended 31 Mrrch 2022

DBL Bangalore Ndagana HighwaF Pvr Limired
DBL Be lary Byaplra H gh{ays Pvr Limired
DBL Byrapura Ch.lakhere H€rMays Pvl Lm ed
DBL Gorhar Khairatunda HiqtMays P!,1 Llmiled
DBL Nidagalta Mysore Higrdays Pvl Lrm ed
DBL Rea Siddhi Highways Pvt Limited
ohroi ahadra Highvays Lim ed
Dodaballapw H6kore Highways Pvt LId
Narsnp(, Pumea Highways Pll Lld
Patlf,apalli KarhgrEra Highways Pvr Lrd
Rooenewada Hiohwavs Limiled

10 730 67
2677 36
1 949 40
1 407 12

11 189 09

1,796.41
1,23700
2,355 22
1,16130

176 A4 176 04

10730 67
2,677 $
1.9A940
1.40712

11,149 09
3,170 97
1,796 41
1,237 tfi
2 355 22
1 161 30

3,170.97 36,1!9.61 39,290.58

tinsecured Lo.n Given
OBL Bangalore Ndagalta Hrgh{ays Pvl Lrmi€d
DBL Bellary SyEpura Hlghways Pvl Limiled
DBL Byrapura Challakhere H€rMays Pvl Lrm tod
DBL Gorhar l$an€tunda Higtuays Pvt Lrmd€d
DBL Nidagats Mysore Hiqt ays Pvr Limted
OBL R4a SiddhiHighways Pvt L mited
Ohrol Ahadra Highways Limiled
Oodabalr.pr Hoskote Highways P\n Ltd
Narenpw Pumea Hiohways A/t Ltd
Pathraparri Kalhghora Highways FM Lrd
ReDall*ada Hiohwavs Limited

6 247 t)6

3 577 01

3 325 93
2 767 17

1.612.!O
1,322 25
2,441.19

902 00
1 405 00 1 405 o0

6 247 A6

2134.49
3.577.O1
3,325S3
2.767.17
4,53000
1.612.90
1,322.25
2,44'1 19

902 o0

4,530.00 25,734,99 30,264.99

7466
74.66

Unsecu.ed toan Take.
112 112
1.12 1.12

-

I\,IBAItV

cHl

s
p?

Year w
Name ot.elrted p.nies
DBL Rewa SiddhiHiohways Pv,t Limitod

I5Br Betary a/rupra H,qrsays Pf, -r so
49 0o
49 oO

49m
ag alo

49 oO

49 oO

lNarmod Pumea rlDNavs P{ ro I assooarocomoanv I 49oo
lR.D:r.*d2 H.tu,,< r'd I A<<..,,'a .nm.,n, I dqno

lDoddosl.apu Hosho e I'qtedys P,n Lld I AssocEleComprny I 49 OO

I Natur€ or rel.t'onshrD I % Share Hordino
| subsdary Company | 70 oo

4,53000

I



OBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMIfED
{Formerly l"ligh FlyAtlines Private Limited)

The key objeclive of the Companys cap,lal managemenl is to ensure lhat it maintains a slable capitar slruclure wifi lhe toors on tolal equily lo
upnold investor, credito., and c'.,siomer conlidenc€ and lo ensu.e futu.e development of ats busa.ess The Company is r@sed on maintaining
a strong equily base io ensure independence, searrny, as w€ll as linancial flenbifty for polenlial fuiure bonowings, if .equked without
impadins lhe .isk profile of lhe Company.

The Companys senior management oversees tie management of lhese ns(s. The Companys s€nior maflagement is supporled bya nnancial
dsk committee lhat advises on linancjalnsks and lhe appropriale ,inanclal risk govemance framework for ihe Company The linancialrisk
committee proMdes assurance lo the Companys s€nior hanagemenl lhal lhe Companys financjalrisk aclivities are govemed by appropriale
policies afld p.ocedures and that tinandaldsks are idenlilied, measured and managed in accordanc€ with lhe Company's policies and nsk
objectives. Allderivative aclivilies for risk management puQoses are caded oul by specialisi ieams lhal have lhe apprcpriate skills
expenence and supervision.ll isthe Companys policy lhal no lrading io derivatives for speculalive pueoses m3y be uaderlaken.

Notes to financialstatements forthe yearended 31 lvlarch 2022

Note 22: Financial dsk manaoement policvand obiectives

i) Credil risk

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

74 66

iii) Liquidity dsk

Credii risk on trade recei€bles is limited as lhe arstome.s of lhe Company mainly consisls of the Holding Company having a strong credit
worihiness. The provision mahx lakes into accounl availaue enemal and i.temal credil ns( lsclors such as credil .alhgs fmm credit rating
agencies, linancial condition, ageing of accounls receivable and lhe Company's hisloric:l expedence for cuslomels.

lvlart€l dsk is lhe risk that lhe fair value ol fulure cash flows of a tinancial insirument will fluduale because of chanoes in maftei prices l,ilarkel
nsk compris€s three t/pes ol.ist inlercsl rate nsk, ornenq risk and oth€r pdce nsk such as squily price nsk and commodity nsk. Financial
jnslrumenls affeded by maftet nsk include bonowings, lmde and oher payables, seornly d€posil, lrade and olher receivables, deposits with

The sensllivity analysis in lhe following seciions relate lo lhe posilion as at31 March 2022 and 31 l\,larch 2021. The senslivilyot the relevanl
income statemenl item is lhe etrecl of the assumed changes rn respective markel nsks The sensitivily analyss have been prepared on the
basis that the amounl ot nel debl and lhe ratio ol fixed to tloaling interest rales of lhe debt are @nstant al 31 March 2022

The analysis edude the impacl ol movemenls in ma.kel vanables onr the carrying values of graluily. other posl relirement obligalions and

Liquidiiy nsk is the risk thal the Company may noi be able to meel ils present and luture cash flow and collarercl obligaiions without incuning
unacceptable losses. Companys objedive is to, at all time mainlai0 optimum levels of liquidiiy to meet iis cash and collalerar r€quirements
Company closely moniiors ils liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. ll maintains adequale sourc€s of nnancing al

The table summa.ieslhe matunly prolile of company's linancial riabilities based on contEdual undiscounied payrnenrs

As at 31 March 2022

Loans from Related Parties
Other fi nancial liabilities

70,270_@
1.12

22.11
1.12

22.11

17,567 50 52 702 5A 70,270.O0
1.12

22.11

As at 31 l!,,larch 2021

hleresl bearing bonowings
toans from Related Parlies
Olher fi.encial liabililies 0.50 050 0.50

MUMBAI
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b)Flnanclal lnstrument! and c.sh d6posits

Credii nsk from balances wilh banks and inaocial inslitutions is managed by lhe company in accordance wilh company's policy. lnvestmenis
of surplus tunds a.e made onlywilh apprcved counteQadies and wilhin credil limiis assigned lo each counte.pany. Company moniloE.ating,
credii spreads and iinandal slrength of jls counter parlies. Company monaiors faiings, credit spread and nnancial slrenglh of its counler
parlies Based on orcoing ass€ssment company adjusl ils exposure to vanoos counterpariies. Companys maximum exposuc lo qedit nsk
lor lhe components of balanc€ sneet is lhe carrying amou.t as disclosed in Nole 5.

lLess lhan l80 days
It\,lore than 180 days



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to financial statements ror the year ended 31 Ma.ch 2022

Note 23: Fair value of ll nancial assets and liabilities

Sel out below, is a comparkon by class oflhe carrying amounts and fair value o, the Company'3 financial
instruments that are recogniged in lhe financial statemenB.

ln

The Company marnlains policies and procedures to value financialassets or linancial liabilities usjng the best and
most relevant data available ln addilion, the Company internally rcviews valuations, including independent price
validation for certain instruments Fu(her, in other inslances, Company retains indepndent pricing vendors to
assist in corroborating the valuations of certain instruments

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at lhe amount at 
'nhich 

the instrument that llould
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaclion betr ,€en market padicipants at the

Fair value of securily deposits have been estirnaled using a discounted cash flow model. The valuatron requires
management to make certain assumptions about interest rales, maturity Period, credit nsk, forecated cash flows.

Long-lerm ixe&rate and variabl+rate recervables/borrowings are evaluated by the company based on
paramelers such as interest rates individual creditworlhiness of the cuslomer and the nsk characteistics ot the
finan@d projecl. Based on lhis evaluation, allowances are laken into accounl for the expected credit losses of
lhese receivables. As of reporting date the carrying amounls of such receivables, net of allo\ €nces are not
malerially differeni from their calculated fair values.

Canying value of lo3ns from banks, other oon cllrrent bonowings and other financjal liabilities is estimated by
discoun{ng fi.,ture cash flor /s using [ates curren$y available tor debl on similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturilies, Fhe own non- performance risk as at reporting date was assessed to be insignifi€ant

Fair value hierarchy
The following table provades the tair value rn€asurcment hierarchy of Company's assets and liabiiities grouped
into Level 1 to Level 3 as described in significant accoun$ng policies - Note 1. Furlher lable describes the
valuation techniques used, key inpuls to valuations and quantalalive information about signifcant unobs€rvable
inputs for fair value measurements.

Carrvinq value Fair value
NO

Particulars
31 Match 2022 31 March 2021 31 Match 2022 31 Match 2021

39,290.58
30,264.99

74.66
265.55

138.76

51 23

39,290.58
30,264.99 138 76

(a)

a)

FinancialAsset
Carried at amortised cGt

Cash and cash equivalent'

FinancialLiabilities
Carried at amortised cost
Borrowngs
Other Financial Liabilities

70,27112
22_11 050

70,271.12
22_11 050

MUMBAI
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s

cHl

Thefollowing methods and assumptions werc used to estimate thefairvalues:
'Ihe company has not disclosed ihe fair values of trade payables, trade recervables and cash and cash
equivelents bec€use their c€rrying amounts are reasonable approximaton olfairvalue.



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High FIy Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31March2022

Note 23: Fairvalue of financial assets and liabilities

Ouantitative disclosu res of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2022
ln Lakhs

Rs. ln La

Dui ng the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 there M€re no transfers bet^€en level 1 and level 2 fair value measurcments
and no transfers into and out of level 3fairvalue measurement.

Fair value measurement usinqSr No
Level 'l Level 2 Level 3

Valuation technique
used

(a)

(D

(ii)
(ii,
(iv)

Other fnancial asset

39,290.s8

30,264 99
74.66

265.55Cash and cash

Financial assets measurcd at amortiseal cost
Discounted cash

{b) Financial liability measurccl at amortisecl cost
Borrowings 70,271.12 Discounted cash

maturiV

(D

(iD Other financlal liabilities 2211

Fair value measurcment usinq
Level 3

Valuation technique lnputs usedSr No.
Level 1 Level 2

(a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

138 76
Other financia assel

Oiscounted cash

matudly

(D

(iD

(ii0
(iv) Cash and cash equivalent'

(b) Financial llabiliv measurcd at amodised cost
Borrowngs(i)

(iD Other financial liabilites 0.50

Discounled cash

MUI\4BAI

AC

cHt

s

Quantitative disclosu res of ,air value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 3 l March m21 :



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2022

Note 24: Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital , share
premium and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to
maximise the shareholder value

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net
debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

Rs. in lakhs

Note 25: Segment Reporting
Segments have been identified in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) 108 on
Operating Segments considering the risk or return profiles ofthe business. As required under lnd AS 108,
the Chiel Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the performance and allocates resources based
on analysis of various performance indicators. Accordingly, information has been presented for the
Group's operating segments and the company has identified busaness segment as primary segment. The
reportable segment is Construction and Engineering Contracts.

Note 26 : Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities
arising from financing activities as required by lnd AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows" is as under:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Long Term Borrowings Short Term Borrowings

Add : Cash inflow
Less : Cash outflow
Add : Non - Cash inflow
Less : Non - Cash outflow
Bafance as on 3'l Merch 2021

Add : Cash inflow 70,270.O0 9.77
Less : Cash outflow 8.65
Add : Non - Cash inflow
Less : Non - Cash outflow
tsalance as on 31 Mafch 2022 70,270.00 1.12

Pa rlicu lars 31 March 2022 3'l March 202'l
Loans and borrowings
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Net debt
Equity
Capital and net debt
Gearinq ratio

70,271.12
265.55

70,005.58
(5,400.48)
64,605.10

108.36%

51.23
(sr.23)
195.11
143.88

-35.60%

o
9

-t

o Acc

CHI

Balance as on 3l Match 2020



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITEO

{Fomerly Hiqh FlyAirlin.s Private Limited)

Notes to financial3tatements fo.lhe year ended 3l March 2022

Note 27: Disclosure of Financial Ratios :

Sr. No. a1 Match 2027 31 March 2021
Roasons for change
ln ntio by mor€ than

9)

h)

)

i)

Curent €lio (in limes)

Debi service coverage

lnventory turnover ralio

rumover ratio (in rimes)

Net eprtal rumover rano
(in rimes)

Flnance cost together wilh
principal rcpaymenls oI lons
tem borowings and cu ent

maludlies ol long iern
borowings dunno lhe period

Wofting capital (working
capilal relers io nel cu.renl

assers aftived aner reducing
curent liabiliiies excludino
cuneni mauniies of long

lem borowinqs from cuEent

Revenue f.om operalions

Ave6ge €pilal employed
(capilal employed relers lo

lolal equily, long-lem
borowings and shonterm

550

-13.01

53 75va

577.960h

172%

-1296.7

351 82

0 000t

N/A

o 11ah

The Company has
given losns lo its

Compa.ies and
Associate and neated
prousion to.
rcdempton ol

Since there was .o
bomwings in lhe

Since lne average
iotal equily for lhe
year is negalive
@mpared 1o previous

Sine lheE was no
trade receivables in

Sin@ iherc was ro
from

operalions in the

Since lhere is loss lor
ule year as compared

Since ltre aveGge
capiial employed
during the year consisl
or borcwings whicn
was not lhere in

t\4 ut\,1BAt

s

cH/

*o

S

i-
t rfl

d)

0

Trade payables tumo@r

N/A

{.30%



OBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Match 2022

Note 28: Additional disclosures as per Schedule lll of the Companies Act 2013

(i) CSR details for the current year (F.Y.21-22) and Previous year (F.Y.20-2'l)
The company does not fall under the criteria of applicability of provisions of CSR, as per the clauses
of Section '135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, no disclosure is given.

(ii) The Company has not entered in to any transactions during the year wilh the companies struck off
under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

(iii) During the flnancial years ended 31 March 2022, the Company has granted loans to the related
parties (subsidiaries and associate as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), without specifying
any terms of the repayment.

(iv) There is no benami property held by the Company and no proceedings have been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(v) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of
the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(vi) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Cunency during the financial
year.

(vii) There are no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of accounts and has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax
Act, 1961. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income and related assets.

(viii) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

A) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (lntermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
lntermediary shall -
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behaif of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

B) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), inctuding foreign
entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwjse) that the
company shall -
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoeve.
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf ofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

cHl

1'

s
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DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATT TIMTTED

(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to financialstatements for the yearended 31 March 2022

Note 29: Figures relating to previous years have been regrouped / rearranged, wherever necessary

Signature to notes to accounts 1to29

For Mukund M Chitale & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 106655W

For and on behalfofthe Board

For DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
CIN : U741 10N,4P2010PTC023673

Dilip Suryavanshi
(lvlanaging Directo0

DIN: 00039944

Place: Bhopal

Daled: 27.05.2022

0,,h)"-
(S. M. Chitale)

Padner

U.No. 111383

Place lvlumbai

Daled. 27.05.2022

- 00039946

(Chief Office0 (Company Secretary)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements

1. Opinion

2

We have audited the accompanying consolidated lnd AS financial statements of DBL lnfra
Assets Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding company"), its subsidiaries (the
Holding company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group';, its associates, which
comprise the consolidated Balance sheet as at 3'lst March 2022, the consolidated statement
of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive lncome), the consolidated cash Ftow
statement and the consolidated statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as'consolidated financial statements,).

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the informltion required by the 6ompanies
Act, 2013 ('the Act') in the manner so required and give a true and faii view in conformiiy with
the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the lndian Accounting
standards (lnd AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the companies (lndian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2o15, as amended of the consolidated state ol affairs ot the
Group and its associates as at March 3i, 2022, its consoridated ross, consoridated totar
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash ttows ior tneyear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
we conducted our audit of the consoridated financiar statements in accordance with thestandards on Auditing, as prescribed under section r+aiiot ot the Act. our rerponrinir,ti",under those Standards are further described in the Audittr's Responsibilities tot ir.," nroit otthe consolidated Financiar statements.section ot our report. we aie indepenJ.nl oi tn"'6rorpand its associates, in accordance with the ethical requlrements that are relevant to our audit ofthe consoridated financiar statements in rndia in t"lr. oitn" code of Ethics issued bv thetnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India ano tne retevani p.rs[". 

"ifl.lJ'nJt ""jli""ir,".thereunder, and we have fulfilled our otner etricat-res[onlioiriti". in accordance with theserequirements. we berieve that the audit evidence ",ni" n"u" obtained is sufficient andappropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that in our professionar judgment, were of mostsignificance in our audit of the consoridated rnd AS tinanciar statemlnis' oiine .rirlnip"rioo.These matters were addressed- in the context 

"r"r, ,roiii the consoridated rnd AS financiarstatements as a whore, and in-lormilq our opinion *,"i""., ,"0 we do not provide a separateopinion on these matters. we have deiermin;d the;att;;; described o"ro*io o" i.'," ruirroitmatters to be communicated in our report.

nN-
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Sr.
No.

Key Audit Matter Auditor Response

1 lnvestment in Associate Companies and
its impairment

(Refer to Accounting Policy under Note
1.10 "lnvestments in Subsidiaries,
Associates and Joint Ventures")

The Company has equity investments in
associate companies.

The Company accounts for equity
investments in associate companies at cost
under equity method (subject to impairment
assessment).

For investments carried at cost amounting
to Rs. 28,667.86 lacs where an indication
of impairment exists, the carrying value of
investment is assessed for impairment and
where applicable an impairment provision
is recognised.

The accounting for investments is a Key
Audit Matter as the determination of
recoverable value for impairment
assessment involves significant
management judgement and estimates
such as future expected level of operations
and related forecast of cash flows, market
conditions, discount rates, terminal growth
rate etc.

Our audit procedures included the
following:

e Obtained an understanding from the
management, assessed and tested
the design and operating effectiveness
of the Holding Company's key controls
over the impairment assessment.

. Evaluated the Holding Company's
process regarding impairment
assessment by involving auditor's
valuation expefts, as applicable to
assist in assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation
model including the independent
assessment of the underlying
assumptions relating to discount rate,
terminal value etc.

o Assessed the carrying value of all
individually material investments,
where applicable, to determine
whether the valuations performed by
the Holding Company were within an
acceptable range determined by us
and the auditor's valuation experts.

o Evaluated the cash flow forecasts
(with underlying economic growth
rate) by comparing them to the
approved budgets and our
understanding of the internal and
external factors.

r Checked the mathematical accuracy
of the impairment model and agreed
the relevant data on sample basis with
the latest budgets, actual past results
and other supporting documents.

r Evaluated the adequacy of the
disclosures made in the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Based on the above procedures
performed, we did not identify any
significant exceptions in th;
management's assessment in relationto the carrying value of equity
investments in associ ates

ftd-
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4. other lnformation (lnformation other than the consolidated financial statements and
Auditor's report thereon)
The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Directors Report, Business Responsibility Report, corporate Governance and shareholders
lnformation, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility ts to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidaled financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otheMise appears to be materially
misstated.

ftd-

5.

When we read the other information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there is
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance and determine the actions under the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibility of Management and those charged with Governance for the consotidated
Financial Statements
The Holding company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements thatgive a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financialperformance incruding consoridated 

_other comprehensive income, 
"on.orio"teci "nanges 

in
equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its associates in accordance wlth the
accounting principres generally. accepted in lndia, includ-ing the lnd AS 

"..orntin! 
s1.no.ra,

specified under section 133 of the Act read with the compa"nies ltnuian nccounting"slr;i"ro.l
Rules, 2015 as amended.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies incruded in the group and of its associatesare responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting recordi in accordance *it;, tn"provisions of the Act for safeguarding of tire assets of the- Group and its associai". ,no torpreventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection ano apptication of appro'priateaccounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudeni; anddesign, implementatron and maintenance of adequate iniernar financiat controis,'tnai'*ureoperating effectivery for ensuring the accuracy and compreteness of the a."ornting ;oror,relevant to the preparation and presentation oi the financiar statement that give , irr"" .no t"i,view and are free from materiar misstatement, whether due to fraud o.. 
"rroi 

which have beenused for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements'by tne jir"rlors otthe holding company as aforesaid.
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ln preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability
of the group and its associates to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

-applicable,

matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Management either intends to liquidate the Group or associates or to cease op"raions, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the group and of its associates
are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the group and of its associates.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated lnd AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standardson auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they co-uld reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users tak;; on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with standards on auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the auiit. We also:

i) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated lnd AS financialstatements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive tothose risks, and obtain audit evidence that is s-ufficieni and appropriate to frouio" I-o"si, to,our opinion The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higherthan for one resurting from error, as friud may invorve coriusion, forgery, intentionar omissions,misrepresentations, or the override of internai control.

ii) obtain an understandino of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated lnd ASfinancial statements rererTant to the audit in orJ"i 1o' o"rign audit procedures that areappropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsiblefor expressins our opinion on whether tn. corpiniJl l"iri"i'i.'ir,""g;;; z";;"'or it,
3;:ffi*:riX?riffHX,,?"ii",nar financiar controii system in prace ani-irie oierating

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness 
-of 

accounting poricies used and the reasonabreness of
:ii:*,g?:i:,lates 

and retated disclosur"" ,id" oy corprni"s tncruoeJin ine gror-p ,no

iv) conclude on the appropriateness of companies included in the group and of its associate,smanagement's use of the ooing concern basis of accouniing ano, uaseo on the audit evidenceobtained. whether a mater"iar ,ir."rtriniy 
"*i.t.",;;;; l; :r"nrs or conditions that mav castsignificant doubt on the abiritv of the Group 

"ra 
it. "l"".LL. to 

"ontinr" 
,J;;;i;;';;;""r"lf we concrude that a materiar uncertainiy ;ri.tt,;;;;; required to draw attention in ourauditor's report to the rerated discrosures in t," tinrn.Lr ,Ltements or, if such discrosures areinadequate, to modify our opinion. our conctusion!- ri" orr"o on the audit evidence obtained

ft.
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up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

vi) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group and its associates to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. we are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included
in the consolidated financial statements, whrch have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

we communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding company regarding,
amon_g other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant auait ilnOingl,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

we also provide those charged with governance wrth a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated inour report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expecteo tooutweigh the public interest benefits of such communica'tion

Other Matters
(a) we did not audit the financiar statements, in respect of one subsidiary, whose rnd ASfinanciar statements incru.de tolar assers oi ns. zi,+oo.ee rakhs, as .iM^i"i-il, iozz;total revenues of Rs. 10,g57.99 rakhs and net cash infrows of Rs. 1 ,946.gg tarni tor yearended on that date as considered in the consolidated financial statements.

(b) we did not audit the financiar statements, in respect of of ten associate companies whichincludes the Group's share of net ross after tax or Rr.z +sr z+ tatns ano Croirp. .i.r" ottotal comprehensive incom.e.of Rs (7 a51 74) rakhs for the year enoeo rrrrarcl :i, iozz,as considered in the consolidated financial statements.

These rnd AS financiar statements have been audited by other auditors whose financiarstatements, and auditor's reports have been furnished t,c us by f," mrnater,eni. ouropinion on the consoridated financiar statements, in so iar as it rerates to the amounts and

d
hd-
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disclosures as included in respect of this subsidiary and associates, and our report in terms
of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary
and associates is based solely on the report of other auditors.

our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with iespect
to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

L Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
(i) As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
consolidated other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agieement with
the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidited financial
statements.

d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the lndian
Accounting standards specified under sectron 133 of the Act, read wiirr Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors of the Holding company
as on March 31 ,2022, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding co-mpany and
the report of the statutory Auditors of its subsidiary companies and associates cdrp"nies,'none
of the directors of the Group companies, its associate companies, is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2);f the Act.

.0 w1t! lgsnect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
lnd AS Financial statement of the Group and the operating effectiveness of sucn controts, reterto our separate Report in "Annexure A,, to this report.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance withthe requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion ano to in! Llst orour.information and accordrng to the expranations given to us, the ,"runer"fion prio') p.uio"o
by the holding company, its subsidiary compani6s and associates, wrrere appricaoie, to itsdirectors during the year is in accordanie with the provisions of section 197 of 

'the 
Aci. 

'

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance withRule 11of the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rures 2014, rn our opinron.nJio tu 6!rt otour information and according to the explanations given to us:

w-I
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i rhe company has no pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of the
Group, its, associates in its consolidated financial statements.

ii. The Group and its associates do not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there are any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the lnvestor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding company, its subsidiary company, its associates,
during the year ended March 31 , 2022.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or othenrvise, that
the lntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provlde any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries:

(b) The Management has represented that no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (,,Funding pa(ies,,), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding parly ("ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarres; and

(c) Based on audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate
nothing has come to our nottce that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause iv (a) and iv(b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Group and it's associates has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

(S M. Chitale)
Pa rtner
M. No.'1 11383
UDIN: 221 1 1383ANMZUDB83O
Place: Mumbai
Dale 27.05.2022

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. '106655W
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Annexure A to the lndependent Auditor's Report of even date on the lnd AS financial
statements of DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited

Referred to in paragraph t8(i)(fl] under Report on
Requirements of our report of even date

Other Legal and Regulatory

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated lnd AS Financial
statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the companies Act, 2013
("the Act")

we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated lnd AS
Financial statements of DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the
Holding Company"), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its Subsidiaries together
referred to as "the Group"), its associates as of March 31,2022 in conjunction with our audit
of the consolidated lnd AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls
2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and its subsidiary companies,

its associate companies incorporated in lndia are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to
Consolidated lnd AS Financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal
Financial controls over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of chartered
Accountants of lndia" (lCAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors.
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 20.13.

Auditors' Responsibility
3 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's and associate's internal financial

controls with reference to Consolidated lnd AS Financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial
controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the standards on Auditing
issued bylcAl and deemed to be prescribed undersection 143(10) of the companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of lnternal Financial controls and both issued by the lnstitute of chartered
Accountants of lndia. Those standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated lnd AS
Financial statements was estabrished and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects. w/

1
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated lnd AS Financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated lnd AS Financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated lnd AS Financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by
the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below,
is sufficrent and appropriate to provide a basis for our audlt opinion on the Group's internal
financial controls system with reference to Consolidated lnd AS Financial statements.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated lnd AS Financial
statements

4 A company's internal financial control with reference to Consolidated lnd AS Financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internat financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permtt preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposltion of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated lnd ASFinancial statements

5 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contrors with reference to
consolidated lnd AS Financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Arso, projections of any evaluation of the internar financial iontrols
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the rlsk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compriance with the poricies or procedures may deteriorate.

h
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Opinion

6 ln our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary company, its associate companies,
which are companies incorporated in lndia, have in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
with reference to Consolidated lnd AS Financial statements were operating effectively as
at March 31 , 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Holding company, its subsidiary company, its associate companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal
Financial controls over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of chartered
Accountants of lndia.

Other Matters

7 our aforesaid report under section 143(3Xi) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated lnd AS
Financial statements insofar as it relates to one subsidiary company and ten associate
companies incorporated in lndia, and to whom internal control with reference to
consolidated lnd AS Financial statements is applicable, is based on the corresponding
reports of the Auditors of such companies.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 106655W

6trt"lr-
(S.M. Chitale)
Partner
M. No. 111383

UDIN: 221 1 1383ANMZUD883O

Place: Mumbai
Dale:27.05.2022



3'lst March 2022
ASSETS
ilon.curent asrets
Prcperty, Plant and Equipment
Capilalwolk in proqress
Goodwill

- Trade receivables

- Olher Financial Asset

Olher non'cunent asset

21

8

21,917.56
3,918.79

28 667.86

5.00
89.92

693 48
Total non-current assets s5,292.62

- Trade reeivebles

- Cash and cash equivalenl

' Other Financial Assets
Currenl tax asset (Nel)
Other current assals

3

6
5

8

74.66

2,212.42
25,734.99

3.308 39
Total current assets 31,330.47

TOTALASSETS 86.623.09

EOUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equily share capilal
Olher equily
Non Conl.ollino lnlerest

200.00

\14,420.04)
(906 71)

Totel Equitv t1s,'t26.75!

Liabilites
Non<ufiont llabllitie3
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 11 95 639 00

Total non-curr€nt IiabiliUes 95,539.00

Cur.ent llabllitie3
Financial liabilities

Eorowings
Trade payable
(a) Total outstanding dues ot micro and small enterprises

(b) Total oulstanding dues of cred(ors olher lha. micro
afld small enterpdses
Other linancial liabilities

Other cufient liabilities

11

12

14

1.12

24 A'1

433 36
s,651.54

Total currenl liabilities 6,110.84
TOTAL LIABILIIIES 1,01,749.44

TOTAL EOUITY AND LIABILITIES 86.623.09

Consolidated Balance Sheotas al31 March 2022

As perour Repo,l of even date

DBL IT,IFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITEO
(Form€rly Hlqh FlyAhlines Private Limited)

6t"hlr-
S. M. Chitale

[I No 111383

ln La

CIN : U741\MP2010PTC023673

4

1to30

Dilip Suryavanshi
(Direclor)

DIN.

M k
(Chiel cial Ofricer)

MUMBAI

Dale 27 .05 2022
Place: Bhopal
Oale: 27 .05 -2022

The ootes refened to above form an inregral pad of

FoTMUKUTID M CHITALE & CO.
Chariered Accounlants
Firm Regn. No. 106655W

For afld on behalf oflhe Board
For DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited

r!
(Directo0

- 00039946

9
10

\ftW
Pragh R.gliuwanshl
(Company Secretary)



OBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

The notes referred to above form an integral part oI
financial statements

1to30

Dilip Suryavanshi
(Director)

DtN - 00039944

Rs. ln Lakhs

(Directo0
tN - 0003

Pragya Raghuwanshi
(Company Secretary)

As per our Report of even dale

For MUKUND IVI CHITALE & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 106655W

For and on behalf of the Board
For DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited

CIN : U741 10MP2010PTC023673

€ ;tk-.-.--.--6"lttll-
S, M. Chitale
( Partner)
M.No. 'l 1 1383

Nf,:,-",
(Chief Financial Officer)

Part,culals Notes Year ended
3lst March 2022

(t)
(r)

Revenue from Operations
Other income

15 11,289.50
22.01

fl[) Total lncome (l+ll) 11,311.sr
(tv) Expenses

Employee benefits expense
Operating Expenses
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses 19

17
18

30.81

11,530.05
8,001.27

Total expenses (lV) 19,562.12
(v)
(vt)

Profit(loss)before exceptional items and tax (lll-lV)

Exceptional items

(8,250.61)

(v[) Profit / (loss) before tax (V) - (Vl) (8,250.61)
(vfl) Tax expenses

(1) Currenl tax
(2) Deferred tax credit

0.04
(89.92)

(tx) Profit / (Loss) for the year from continuing
operations (Vll - Vlll)

(8,r60.72)

(x) Other Comprehensive lncome

Share of Profiv (Loss) of Associates (7,451.74)

(xt) Total Comprehensive lncome for the year
(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other
Comprchensive lncome for the year) (lX-X)

115,612.471

Profit attributable to
Owners of the Parent
Non Controlling lnterest

Earnings per equity share (for continuing
ope.ations)
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

(14,842.93)
(769 54)

(780.62)
(780.62)

MUMBAI

*.

Place: I\rumbai
Dale: 27 .05 .2022

Place: Bhopal
Dalet 27 .05.2022

(x[)

(x[)
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DBL INFRAASSETS PRIVATE LIMITEO
(Formerly High FryAirlines Private Limlted)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the yearsnded 31 March 2022

For th6 y..rended 31
Match 2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERAIING ACTIVITIES:
Not Prolll/ (Loss) before tax as per Profit& Loss A.counl (8,250.6r)

<22.01',)
a,@1.27

Ope.alrng Profil before Worting Capital Changes

(hcr€aselDecrease in Othe. Non-Cunent Assels
(lncrease)/Decrease in Olher Cunent Assets
(lncrease)/ Decrease in loans and advan@s
(lncrease)/Decrease in Trade Rec€ivables
lncrease/(Decroase) in Oiher f nancial liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Other cunenl riabirities
lncrease/(Desease) in Provisions

1271.351

(498 90)
1,598.76

(30,126.24)
(74.66)
24.10

(338.23)
5,616.15

Net c€sh trom Operaling Aclivilies before lncoms Tax (24 070 35)
(8S 88)

NetCash from Opo.atinq Activities {23,980.47)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of lnvestments
Change in Capilal work in Progress

(39,290.58)
(1,78s.67)

22.01

B NetCash from / {used in) lnvestino Activities 141,051.24)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds lrom Long Term Sonowings
Proceeds from Shod Term Borowings

74,204.23
1.15

(8,001.27)

c Net Cash from /(used in Fin.ncinq Activities 66,208.11

A+B+C Net lncrease /(Oecrease)in Cish and Cash Equivalents

Opening Balance ofCash and Cash Equivalents

1,173.10

1,039.02

ClGins Balance ofCash and Cash Equivalents 2,212.42

Cloiino Cash and Cash Eduivelonts
Cash in Hand
Bank Balance wiih Schedubd Aanks

in Curenl Account
in Fixed Deposit Accoufil

3.16

2 039 84
169.42

2,212.12

i. The above c€sh flow slatement has been prepared underthe indned m€lhod as set oul
in lndian Accounling Standard 7, Stalemenl or Cash Flow.

ii. Figures in brackel indicate cash outllow

The Noleson Accounr torm inreglalpari olthe Financial

As p€rour Report ot even daie Forand on behafor lhe Board
For oBL Infra Assets Private Limited

ctN u74110MP201oPTC023673

;ffi*;-
(otreclor)

DrN - 00039944S.lV. Chitale

M No. 111383

J-W*-,,
MUMBAI
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Oale: 27 .O5.2O22

For MUKUND M CHITALE & CO.
Chartered Accouniants

Date: 27 .05.2022



DBL INFRAASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Forme.lyHigh Fly Airlines Prlvate Llmited)

Consolidated Statement of changes in equity ror the yea r ended 31 March 2022

A. Ecuiiv 3hare caoii.l

Batance at the beginning otlhe cunent
reponjng period

Changes in Equily Restared balance ai the
beganning of the curent

Changes in equity share
capital du,ing tne cuneni

Aabnce alihe end of lhe
arnent reporting peiod

200 00 200 00 200.00

Balance at ihe beginning of tre p.evious
reporting pe.iod

Changes in Equiiy Restaled bala.ce al the
beoinninq of the previous

Cnanges in equity share Balance at rhe end oflhe
p.evious reponing penod

200.00 200.00 200.00

in

Atuibutabl€ to Equityholders of rhe par€nt
Controlllng lnterestReserves and Surplus

Balance ai beoinnind of th {4.89)
P rofit / (loss) for lhe year

Other compreh ensive income (nel ot tax)
(14,842.93)

427.74

(14,842.93)

127 7A

(769 54)

(137 11)

(15,612.47)

290.61
Balance at end of the curenl vear 114.420.O4\ 111,420.04) (906.71) 115.326.751

B. Otner equity

Balance as on 31 March 2022

As per our Reporl ofeven daie

For MUKUND M CHITALE & CO.

The notes reletred 1o above form an inlegral
part of financial slatemen ts

R6.in Lakhs

l.-

n Lakhs

11o30

CMdered Accounlants
Firm Reon No 14,6655w

6l,,hlr-
S. M. Chilale

]\4.No. 111383

For and on behalioflhe Board
For DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited

CIN : U741 10MP2010PTC023673

ol 00039946

\K
Pragya Raghuwanshi

oate 27.05.2022 Dale:27 05 2022
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated lnd AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies

1.1 Company Overview

DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited (the 'company') is domiciled in lndia with its registered oflice at Bhopal,
Madhya Pradesh, lndia. The Company has been incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956. The company is presently in the business of development of infrastructure facilities.

The company has changed its name from 'High Fly Airlines Private Limited'to'DBL lnfra Assets Private
Limited' on 26b July 2021.

1.2 Basis of Preparation offinancial statements

The Company's lnd AS financial statemenls have been prepared in accordance with lndian
Accounting Standards (lnd AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs under sections 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 ofthe Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and Comapnies (lndian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 20'16.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31"r Match 2022 were approved for
issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 27th May 2022.

1.3 Basis of accounting

The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis following the historical cosl convention,
except for certain financial inslruments that are measured at fair values in accordance with lnd
AS. Further, the guidance notes/ announcements issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia (lCAl) are also considered, wherever applicable except to the extent where
compliance with other statutory promulgations override the same requiring a different treatment.

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Changes in equity are prepared
and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act").
The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and
Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule lll to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the
financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified
Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

1.5 Current / Non-Current classification

An asset or liability is classified as 'current' when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(i) it is expecled to be realized or settled, or is inlended for sale or consumption in, the
company's normal operating cycle,

(i0 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(iiD it is expected to be realized or settled within twelve months from the reporting date; or

(iv) an assel is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for atleast twelve months from the reporting date

(") in case of liability, the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement
ofthe liability for atleast twelve months from the reporting date.

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

1.4 Presentation of Financial Statements



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other crileria set out above which are in accordance with Schedule lll to the Act.

Operatinq Cycle
Based on the nature of products and services of the Company and the normal time between acquisition
of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-
current

1.6 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with lnd AS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounls of assets and liabilities, the disclosures
of contingent liabilities at the date of the linancial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in

estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if
material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or
complexity and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates a nd
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information
about each of these estimates and judgements is included in the relevant note.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

A. Judgements in applying accounting policies

The judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see note below) that the Company
has made in the process of applying its accounting policies and that h ave a significant effect
on the amounts recognised in these financial statements pertain to useful life of assets. The
Company is required to determine whether its intangible assets have indefinite or finite life
which is a subject matter of judgement.

B. Key source of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to
which components of the cost may be capitalized separately. Useful lives of tangible
assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule ll of the Companies Act, 2013. ln
cases, where the useful lives are different from thal prescribed in Schedule ll, they are

based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated
usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement,
anticipated technological changes, manufaclurers'warranties and maintenance support.

MUMBAI
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3, March 2022

b) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary
escalation and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is
determined based on the prevailing market yields of lndian Government Securities as at
the Balance Sheet Date for the estimated term of the obligations

c) Recognition of deferred tax assets

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the
extenl that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised.

d) Recognition and measuremenl of other provision

The recognition and measurement of olher provisions are based on the assessment of
the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances
known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may
therefore vary from the figure included in other provisions.

e) Discounting of long-term financial instrument

All financial instruments are required lo be measured at fair value on initial recognition.
ln case of financial inslruments which are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost, interest is accrued using the effective interest method.

1.7 Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries and associates. The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiaries are
aggregated and consolidated, line by line, from the date control is acquired by any Group entity
to the date it ceases. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed lo the Group as owners and to the non-controlling interests.

The Group presents the non-controlling interests in the Balance Sheet within equity, separately
from the equity of the Group as owners. The excess of the Group's investment in a subsidiary
over its share in the net worth of such subsidiary on the date control is acquired is treated as
goodwill while a deficit is considered as a capital reserve in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. On disposal of the subsidiary, attributable amount on goodwill is included in the
determination of the prolit or loss and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
lmpairment loss, if any, to the extent the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is
charged off to the Statement of Profit and Loss as it arises and is not reversed. For impairment
testing, goodwill is allocated to Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or a group of CGUs to which it
relales, which is not larger than an operating segment, and is monitored for internal
management purposes.

All inkagroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The consolidaled financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for
like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented, to the extent
possible, in the same manner as the Company's separate financial statements.



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3l Match 2022

List of Subsidiaries/Associates

Sr.
No. Name of the Group

Principal
Place of

Business

Date of
invest nent Proportion of

Ownership
lntercst

(31 March
20221

Subsidiaries
1 DBL Rewa Sidhi Highways Private Limited lndia 31.08.2021 70.00%

Associate
DBL Bangalore Nidagatta Highways Pvt
Limited lndia 3'1.o8.2021 49.OOo/"

2 DBL Bellary Byrapura Highways Pvt
Limited lndia 31.08.2021 49.O00/o

3 DBL Byrapura Challakhere Highways Pvt
Limited lnd ia 3'1.08.202'l 49.00vo

4 DBL Gorhar Khairatunda Highways Pvt
Limited lndia 31.Oa.2021 49.00%
DBL Nidagatta Mysore Highways Pvt
Limited lndia 31 0A 2021 49.00%

6 Dhrol Bhadra Hiqhways Limited lndia 31.08.2021 49.O00/.

7
Dodaballaour Hoskote Hiqhwavs Pvt Ltd lndia 31.08.2021 49.00%

I Narenpur Purnea Hiqhways Pvt Ltd lndia 49.00y.
9

Pathrapalli Kathqhora Highways Pvt Ltd lndia 31.08.2021 49.OOo/"
'10

Repallewada Highways Limited lndia 31.08.2021 49.O0./o

1.8 Functional and presentation currency

These flnancial statements are presented in lndian Rupees (lNR), which is also the Company's
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise
indicated.

1.9 Property, plant and equipment and Depreciation

Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized when it is possible that future economic benefits

associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably.

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condilion for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

lf significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are

accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the company. Advance given towards acquisition of Property, Plant and

$:
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High FIy Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2022

Equipment outstanding at the reporting date are disclosed as capital advances under Non-Currenl
Assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benelits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in lhe same period.

Depreciation is calculated on cosl of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is generally
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated
over lhe shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the company
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which
asset is ready for use (disposed oD.

'Ll0lntangible Assets

(a) Other lntangible Assets

lntangible assets that the Company conlrols and from which it expects future economic benefits are
capitalised upon acquisition at cost comprising the purchase price and directly attributable costs to
prepare the assets for ils intended use.

lntangible Assels is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognilion is recognized in the Statement of
Prolit and Loss in the same period.

lntangible assets that have finite lives are amortised over their useful lives by the straight line method.

(b)Service concession arrangements (Toll Rights)

The Company recognises an intangible asset arising from a service concession arrangement to the
extent the company has right to charge for the use of concession infrastructure. lntangible asset
would be initially measured at cost. The fair value, at the time of initial recognition of such an
intangible asset received as consideration for providing construction or upgrade services in a

service concession arrangement, is regarded to be its cost. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
the construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost. Subsequent to initial
recognilion the intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and

accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in

the speciric asset to which it relates.

- Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amounl substituted for cost, less its
residual value. Amorlisation is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straightline basis
over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available for use,

since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the asset.

The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service concession arrangement is a period
from when the company has right to charge the user of infrastruclure for such use to the end of the
concession period.



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limlted)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2022

l.ll lnvestnents in associates, ioint ventures and subsidiaries

lnvestments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are carried al cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. \ /here an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the
investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture, the difference between net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

l.l2lmpairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or
cash generating unit (CGU) may be impaired. lf any such indication exists, the company estimales
the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU'S
net selling price or its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

ln assessing value in use, the eslimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discounl rate that reflects current market assessmenls of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

lmpairment losses are recognised in the slatement of profit and loss. They are allocated flrst to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of
the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

1.13 Financial lnstruments

A financial instrumenl is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity inslrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

lnitial Recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All llnancial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade
receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets that are not at fair value through profit or loss
are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:-
il Financial assets at fair value and ii] Financial assets at amortised cost. Where assets are measured
at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of profit and loss [i.e fair
value through profit or lossl, or recognised in other comprehensive income [i.e. fair value through other
comprehensive incomel. A tlnancial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held
within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows

M MBAI
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

and the contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Derecognition

The company derecognises a financial assel when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retain substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

lmpairment of financial asset

For impairment of financial assets, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model. Following
financial assets and credit risk exposure are covered within the ECL model:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g.
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
that result from transactions that are within the scope of lnd AS 1 15.

The company follows 'simplified approach'for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables including receivables aecognised under service concession arrangements.

Financial liabilities

lnitial recognition

The company initially recognises borrowings, trade payables and related financial liabilities on the
date on which they are originated.

All olher financial instrumenls (including regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets) are
recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which the company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Non-derivalive financial liabililies are inilially recognised at fair value, net of transaclion costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amo(ized cost using the effective interest method,
except for contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently
measured at fair value through prolit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year
from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of
these instruments.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on

The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk.

Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLS at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk
exposure, the company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. lf credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, then the impairment loss is
provided based on lifetime ECL.

Subsequent measurement



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

substantially differenl terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modilied, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Offseft ing of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

1.14 Leases

The Company assesses whether a contracl contains a lease, at inception of a coniracl. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified
asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve monlhs or less (short{erm leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the Company recognizes lhe lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

The righlof-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Righlof-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the
fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. ln such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
paymenls. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whelher it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as flnancing cash flows

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a
present obligation as a resull of pasl events, it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources
and a reliable estimate can be made of lhe amount of the obligation. These are reviewed at each

1.15 Provisions and Contingencies
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2022

balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the currenl best estimate. Contingent liabilities are not
provided for and are disclosed by way of notes.

lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost in the
statement of profit and loss.

l.l6 Revenue recognition

Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the conlract plus any variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue
and can be measured reliably.

lf the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised in
profit or loss in propqrtion to the stage of completion of the contract. The stage of completion is
assessed by reference to surveys of work performed. Otherwise, contract revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable.

Revenue related to construction or upgrade services provided under a service concession
arrangement is recognised based on the stage of completion of the work performed. Operation or
service revenue is recognised in the period in which the services are provided by the company

lnterest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss using lhe effective interest melhod.

Borrowing cosls are interest and olher costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost ofthat asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.18 Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attribulable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could
have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity
shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair
value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares
are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive
potential equity shares are delermined independently for each period present.

1.19 Cash Flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or fulure operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associaled with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.
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'1.20 Employee Benefib

Short Term Employment benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages elc. and the expected cost ofex-gratia
are remgnized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Post Employment Employee Benefits

Retirement benefits to employees comprise payments to government provident funds, gratuity fund
and Employees State lnsurance.

Defined Contribution Plans

Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity liability is deflned benefit obligation. The Company's net obligation in respect of the gratuity
benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in

relurn for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its
Present value.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation by an independent actuary, using the projected unit credit method, which recognizes each
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each
unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the
market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Remeasurement of the net dellned benellt liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive Income. Net interest expense (income) on the
net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net
defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking
into account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in Statement of Prolit and
Loss.

MUMBAI

T.
lt.

DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines P.ivate Limited)

The Company's contribution to defined contributions plans such as Provident Fund, Employee Stale
lnsurance are recognised in the Statemenl of ProIit and Loss in the year when the contributions to the
respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the
respective Funds

When the beneflts of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in Statement of
Prolit and Loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan
when the settlement occurs. Actuarial gains/losses are recognized in the other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

1.21 lncome Taxes

Current Tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respecl of previous years. The amount of
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. lt is measured using tax rales (and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offsel only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

lvlinimum alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an assel only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence thal the Company will pay income tax higher than that computed under MAT,
during the year that MAT is permitted to be set off under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (specified year). ln
the year, in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset the said asset is
created by way of a credit to the Stalement of profit and loss and shown as MAT credit enlitlement.
The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet dale and writes down the carrying amount of
l\4AT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the
Company will pay income tax higher than MAT during the specilied year.

Oeferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for linancial reporting purposes and lhe corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried foMard tax losses and tax credits.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using lax rates and tax laws lhat have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which lhose temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect of changes in tax rales on deferred income lax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or
expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred
income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. The company
offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set ofi the
recognized amounls and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The income tax provision for the interim period is made based on the
best estimate of the annual average tax rate expected to be applicable for the full financial year.

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather lhan continuing use and a sale is highly probable.

Assets designated as held for sale are held at the lower of carrying amount at designation and fair
value less costs to sell.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction belween market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaclion to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

. ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or

. ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
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L23 Fair value measurement
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The principal or the most advantageous market musl be accessible by the company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions lhat market participants would use
when pricing lhe asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic besl
interest.

For cash and other liquid assets, the fair value is assumed to approximate to book value, given the
short term nature of these instruments. For those items with a stated maturity exceeding twelve
months, fair value is calculated using a discounted cash flow methodology.

. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

. Level 3 - Valuation lechniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the assel or liability and the level of the
fair value hierarchy as explained above.

$.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset considers a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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Note 2.1: Capital work in proqress

For the Year ended 3'lst March, 2022

Ageing Schedule for CapitalWork ln Progress - 3l March 2022

Amount in CWIP for a od of
in Lakhs

Lakhs
Gross Amortization Net Ca Value

As al 01 1041202'l Deductions As at
31t03t2022

As at
0't to4t202'l

For the year Deductions As at 31 lO3l2O22 As at 31 10312022 As at 31/03/202'l

Financial asset in
progress 20,13'1.89 10,862.46 9,076.80 21,917.56 21,917.56

Total 20,131.89 10,862.46 9,076.80 2'1,917.56 21,917.56

-

CwlP
Less than 'l year 1-2 years

::-!:jr_.i.:it_9_!
2-3 years More than 3

years
Total

(i) Projects in
progress

1,785.67 1.667.3'l 18,464.58 21,917.56

Total 1,785.67 1,667.31 18,464.58 21,9,17.56

ng value

AdditionsParticulars



OBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Fo.merly Hlgh FlyAirlinos Pnvrte Limited)

Noto.lo con.olldated finencial statements tor the year end€d 31 Ma.ch 2022

Not€ :3 T6do R.c.iwbles

3'1 March 2022

(i) I€de Re@ivaues considered good-Secured

{ii) Trade Receivablesconsidered oood,Unseor.ed

74 66

74.66

ln

3 1 There are no lrade recelvables due from any dkeclor or any oflicer or lhe Company
eilher severally or joinlly with any olher person, or from anylirms orpnvate
companies in wh cn any d rcclor is a partner a director or a mern ber

32 fl3!.e-8c!9!v3!&s-qse!!.s-$igiLuLs
in Lakhs

outliandlnE iorfollowins poriods from du€ date of payment

2-3 yearc

As at March 31,2022
(i) Undispuied Trade receivables - considered qood 74.66 74.66

(,,)
Undisp led Trade receivables-which have
siqailicanl increase in credit nsk
Undispuled Trade recevables- sedil impated
D spuled Trade ReceLvables consLdered good

(v) Disputed Tlade receivables - wtrich have
siqnmcant increase in credil nsk

(vi) Dispuled Tlade €ceivables - credit impaired
74.66 74.66

rIIIIIIIITIIEI
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Note :- 4 lnvestments
Rs. ln Lakhs

Note t 5 Loans
Rs. ln Lakhs

The Company has given interest free loan to its related parties basgd on the exemption given
under section 186(1'1)of the Companies Act 2013.

The loans are given for expansion and general purpose of the business.
The loan given is repayable by the related parties'on demand'.

5.4 Loans and advan to related parties:
(Rs in Lakhs

5.1

Particulars 31 Merch 2t22
No of Shares Amount

(D Unquoted Equity shares of Assocaate Companies

DBL Bangalore Nidagatta Highways Pvt Limited
DBL Bellary Byrapura Highways Pvt Limited
DBL Byrapura Challakhere Highways Pvt Limited
DBL Gorhar Khairatunda Highways Pvt Limited
DBL Nidagatta Mysore Highways Pvt Limited
Dhrol Bhadra Highways Limited
Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Pvt Ltd
Narenpur Purnea Highways Pvt Ltd
Pathrapalli Kathghora Highways Pvt Ltd
Repallewada Highways Limited

1,58,905
3,67,776
3,57 ,730
3,46,993
4,17,772

62,348
90,396
71,896
76,58'1

88,534

Total 20,38,931 28,667.86

Total 28,667.86

Particulars 3'l March 2022
(i) Loans to Associate Companies

DBL Bangalore Nidagatta Highways Pvt Ltd
DBL Bellary Byrapyra Highways Pvt Ltd
DBL Byrapura Challakere Highways Pvt Ltd
DBL Gorhar Khairatunda Highways Pvt Ltd
DBL Nidagatta Highways Pvt Ltd
Dhrol Bhadra Highways Ltd
Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Pvt Ltd
Narenpur Purnea Highways Pvt Ltd
Pathrapali Kathghora Highways Pvt Ltd
Repallewada Highways Ltd

6,247.06
2,134.49
3,577 .O1

3,325.93
2,767.17
1,612.90

2,441.19
902.00

1,405.00

Total Current 25,734.99

Type of Borrower Amount of loan or
advance in the
nature of loan
outstanding

Percentage to the
total Loans and
Advances in the
nature of loans

Promoter
Directors
Kl/Ps
Related parties 25.734.99 100.00%

Total 25,734.99 100.00%

7,924.19
2,218.48
3,479.29
1,985.39
8,677.08
1 ,623.27

278.58
1,457.98

549.33
474.28



(Rs. ln Lakhs

Note :- 7 Other Financial Assets
Rs. ln Lakhs

Rs- ln Lakhs

Particulars 3'l Match 2022
(i)
(ii)

Cash in hand
Balances with Banks
- Cunent Account
- Fixed Deposits

316

2,039.84
169.42

Total 2,212.42

Particulars 31 March 2022

(i) AdvanceRecoverable 5.00

Total 5.00

Particulars 31 March 2022

Non-current
Unamortised Processing Charges
MAT Credit Entitlement

(D

(ii)
692.82

Total Non-current 693.48

(i)
(ii)
(iiD

(iv)
(v)

Current
Tax Deducted at source and Advance Tax (net of
Unamortised Processing Charges
Deposit with government authorities
Prepaid Expenses
Withheld money

18.63
46.24

3,200.43
18.66
24.42

Total Current 3,308.39

Total 4,OO1.87

M MBAI
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Note :- 6 Cash And Cash Equivalents

Note :- 8 Other Assets



Rs. ln Lakhs

Details of sharehold6rs hold more than 5% shares ln the Com

i. The Company has only one class oI shares refened to as equily shares having a face value of Rs.10 each. Equily holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share

il. 100% shares ol the company has been pledged in favour of the Debenture trustee i.e. Axis lrustee Services Limited

b) Reconciliation of the no. of shares and amounts outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repo{ng yea.:

Perticulars 31 March 2022
Numbers Amount (Rs.)

At the beginning of the year
lssued during the year
Outstanding at the end ollhe year

20 00,000 2,00,00,000 00

20,00,000 2.00.00.000.00

Partaculars 31 Match 2022
Numbers % o, holdinq

Equig shares of Rs. {0 each fully paid
Dilip Buildcon Limiied' 20 00 000 100 00%

" 20 shares are held by indivaduals as nominees ofthe Company.

'16,00,000 shares held by l\rr. Dilip Suryavanshi and 3,99,980 shares held by Mrs. Seema Suryavanshi have been lransferred to
Dilip Buildcon Limited on 5th August 202'1.

d) Details of promoters shareholding in the Co
3l March 2022 31 March 2021

Promoter Name No. of Shares
% Change during

the year No, oI Shares o/, of total shares
Dilio Euildcon Limited 20 00,000 100 0000/0 100.00% 0.00%

Dilip Suryavanshi 0.000% -80.00% 16.00.000 80.00%

Seema Suryavanshi 0 000% -20 000k 4,00,000 20 00v,
20,00,000 100.00% 20,00,000 100.00%

Note 10: Other Eouitv

i. Retained Eamin Rs. ln Lakhs

# Retained Earningsr Retained earnings are the prolits thai lhe Company has earned till date, less divideflds or
oiher distributions paid to shareholders.

Particulars 31 Match 2022
Authorlsed share Capltal
50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
(P.Y. 50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)

500.00

500.00

lssued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
20,00,000 Equity Shares oi Rs. 10 each
(P Y 20.00.000 Eouitv Shares of Rs. '10 eachi

200 00

Total 200.00

3l March 2022Particulars
Balance atthe beainnino of the vear (4 83)

(14,442_93)- Protit / (Loss) Ior the year
- Other comprehensive income (net of tax)

427.74- On account of acquisilion
Balance at the.nd ofthe year 114,42O.O41
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Note 9: Eouitv Share Caoital

a)Terms/rights attached to equity shares
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Note'11: Borrowinos

Padiculars 3'lst March 2022

(a)

Non4urrcnl
S€cured
Debenturcs
13% 7027 Non convedible Debenlurc of Rs 10

Lakhs each

(b) Tem loans
From Banks

Lessr Curent mlurities of nonrurent borcwings

70,270.00

25.369.00

25.369.00

Total Non{urent borowinqs 95,639.00

Curenl
(a) Unsecured

1.12

Total Curent borowings

ffi

1l.l DetailsotlsmsofnpayrentandecuaitiesprcvldedinBlp€ctofsrcuBdtemlornraEasundec

Non Curent Borrowino3

.l DebentuEs

On 3 1 st August, 202 1 and 28th October 202 1 , the Company issued 7,027 Non Convortible Debentures on private placement basis at an
issue price of Rs. '10 lakhs per debenture for an aggregate consideration of Rs. 70,270.00 lakhs. The Debentures of the Company are listed
on Bombay Stock Exchange.The Company has used the proceeds in a@ordance with the objects stated in the Placerent Document.

The seerities providod is as follo6:
i) Pledge over '|00% equity of the lssuer.

ii) Pledge on 4970 equity ol lhe Specifed Pojects to be @ated by the lssuer (affertransfer of49o/o equity oflhe Specified Prcjects by DBL to the lssuer), subject
lo relevant NOC ftom lhe rcspective poject lenders of the Specified Prcjects wilhin 90 days frcm Deered Dale ofAllofnent.

iii) Co.po€te guaantee/ Parent Undertaking from DBL.

iv) A charge by Ey ot a deed ofhypothe@tion on the (i) debt seryi@ rcserye account to be maintained by the lssue( (ii) lhe present and tuturc identifed bank
a@unts in wtrich allthe Re@ivables of lhe lssuer shall be qedited including allfuture sale prcceeds to be rcceived by lssuer upon sale of the Specified
Pojects Bither into the private lnv€stment Trust ("lnvi0 or to any third party, and (iii) Company lntra G.oup Loans availed by the Spocified Prcjecls lrom the
issuer.

The details of rcdemotion is as follos:
i) FiEt Fa@ value redemption shall bo on the date falling 39 months .fter the Deemed Date ofAllotment and the.eafrer each subsequent redemption shall be

mde at in a@rdane with the Redemption Schedule

ii) The debentures are lo be redeemed al prcmium of Rs. 34,398.60 lakhs at the end ofthe lem.

iii) The details of redemption of principal value of debentures are as follow:

b) Tem L@n from Banks (in respect of subsidiary company)

i. The holding company has pledged 30% shares with CanaB Bank & given an underiaking for non disposal of 5'l% shares during
lhe curency ofthe loan in addition to pledged shares in pursuant to lems of borowings avajled by $e company.

ii. The loan is secured by a lirst charge on borcw/s immovable properties, both present and tuture,tangible mveable assets
(including but not limiled lo all curen, non- orenl asstes ) both present and tuture otherthan the asset foming part of the Prcjec1
Assets, EscrNac@unl and Sub a@unts, and inlangible assets.

iii. The loan is also secured by personal guarantee of Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi, the managing darector ofthe Holding company, Mc.
Seema Suryavanshi, the relative of the managing director of the Holding Company and Mr. Devendra Jain, whole time director of
the Holding @mpany.

1'1.2 RepaymentSchedule

(i) Financial Year 2021-22

Amount in INR lakhs Redemption (%)

1

8783.75 12.500/o

70.270.00 '100.00%

'l year 1-3 veaE

4.059.04
21,626.54 71,012.16

1 1.3 Therc is no pending satasfaction of charge in relation to borcwings rhich is yet to be registecd with Registrar ofCompanies beyond lhe statutory period.
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Note 12: Other Financial liabilities
ln Lakhs

12 1 S-!-0.dry!-tc.Or.1sls-3.s.qD-s-:

As at March 3l 2022

Note 13: Other Cur.ent liabilities
ln Lakhs

Note 14: Provisions
Rs. ln Lakhs

. ln Lakhs

Particulars 31st lvlarch 2022

(i)

(i0
(iii)
(iv)

Current
Accrued Expenses
Creditors for Expenses
Sitting Fees Payable
Retention money

1 15

0.10
20.24

Total 24.81

Outstanding for following periocls from due date of payment
SR No.

Less than I year 'l-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total

(D MSttl E

(iD Others 328 324
(iiD Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Particulars 31st March 2022

(D

(iD
(iiD

Duties and Taxes
Labour Cess payable
Withheld' utility

8.45
407.49

17 _42

Total 433.36

Particulars 3'l st March 2022
Current
Provision for Redemption of Debentures
Provision for expenses

(r)

(iD
5,555.06

96.48
Total 5,G51.54

Particulars



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerlv Hiqh Flv Airlines Private Limitedl
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Note 15 : Revenue from Operations

Note 16 : Othe. lncome

Note '18 : Finance Costs

cHl

Rs. ln Lakhs

ln Lakhs

Rs. ln Lakhs

ln Lakhs

Rs. ln Lakhs

Particulars Year ended 3l March,2022

(i) Conlract Receipts 11,289.50

Total 't'1,289.50

Particulars Year ended 31 March,2022

lnterest lncome
lnterest on lncome Tax refund

(D

(ii)
20.90

'1 .12

Iotal 22.01

Particulars Year ended 31 March,2022

(D

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

Subcontractor charges
lndependent Engineering Fees
Labour cess deducted and taxes
lnsurance Charges
Cost Of l,Iaterial Consumed IND AS

405.62
133.08
90.72
38.16

10,862.46

lotal 11,530.05

Particulars Year ended 31 Match,2022
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

Bank Charges
Discounting of redemption premium on debentures
Unwinding of Processing fees
lnterest on term loan
lnterest on mobilisation advance

60.44
5,629.70

31.17
2,236.32

43.65

lotal a,oo1-27I

Particulars Year ended 31 March, 2022
(i)
(iiD

(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
(x)
(xi)

Audit Fees (Refer Note 20)
Miscellaneous expense
Fines and Penalties
Tour and Travel Expenses
Director sitting fees
Advertisement Expenses
Professaonal and Consultancy charges
Legal Fees
Professionaltax
lnterest on GST and TDS

0.08
0.07
1.34
0.10
0.84

23.16
1.92
0.03
0.92

Total 30.81

\rr

Note '17 : Costs of Construction

Note 19 : Other Exoenses





Notes to consolidated financial statements forthevear ended 3'l March 2022

i)Market iisk

i) credit risk

OBL ltlFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
lFormerlv Hiah FlvALlines Private Limitedl

31 March 2022
74 66

Market nsk is lhe risk lhat lhe fair value of fdure c€sh flows of a financial inslrument will flucluate becruse of changes in ma*et prices.
Markel risk cDmprises three types of risk inlerest rale sk, curency risk and other price ast such as equily pnce nsk and commodity isk
Financial instrumenls affected by market nsk indude borrowings, trade and olher payabies, secu ly deposrl, trade and olher rcceivables,

The sensilrvity analysis in lhe followi.g seclions relale to lhe positDn as at 31 March 2022. The sensilivity ol lhe relevanl income stalement
ilem is lhe effect of lhe assumed changes in respeclive market risks. The sensilivily analysis have been prepared oo lhe basis lhat lhe
amounl of net debl and lhe ratio of ,ixed 10 floaling interesl rales of the debt are conslant al 31 lvlarch 2022.

The analysis exclude the impacl of movements in markel variables on: the c:rrying values of graluity, other post retirement obligations and

Credil dsk on llade receivables is limiled as the cuslome.s of lhe Company mainly consins ol the Hoiding Company having a strong credil
worthiness The prcvision mat x lakes inlo account available exlemal and inlemal cred nsk faclors such as credil ratings from credii raling
agencies. financial condition, ageing of accounls receivable and lh6 Company's hisloricd experience for custome.s.

rmpaired are as follows

Credit risk from b6lances with banks and financial inslitutions rs managed by lhe company in accordanc€ wilh company's policy. lnveslmenls
of surplus funds are made only with approved counlemanies and within credii limits assigned lo each counlerparty Company moniroG raing.
credit spreads and rinancial slrength oI its counts parlies. Company mon{ors €lings, credit spread and linancal slrength of its counter
pades. Based on ongoing assessment company adjust il's exposurc lo various counlerpanies. Companys marimum exposurc to crcdil risk
fo.the components of balance sheel is lhe c€rrying amount as disclosed in Nole 6.

b)Financial instruments and cash deposits

iii) Liquidity rlsk

Uquid y nsk is the nsk ihat the Company may not be able to meel ils present and future cash flow and collateral obligations without inc!.ring
unacceplable losses. Compaoy's objeclive is lo, at all lime maidain oplamum levels of liquidity to rneet irs cash ard collate€l requirements.
Company dosely monilors its liquidity postion and deploys a robust cash managemenl system. lt maintains adequale sources of liflancing at

The lable summsrises the matudty profile of company's financial liabilities based on conAaduat undiscountd paymerts

As at 31 iila.ch 2022

l-3 years Beyond 3 Years
Borro,/Jings
Loans from R€lated PE(ies
Olher financial liabilities

9s,639.00
112

24.41
1.12

24 a1

21626.54 74,012.4A 9s,639.00
112

24.41

*.

o

Note 23: Financialrl3k manaoement policv and obiectives

The key objeclive ofthe Company's capital managemeni is to ensure thal il maintains a stable capitd nructure wilh the focus on totalequily
to uphold inveslor, credilor, and cuslomer conlidence and to ensure fulure developmert of its business. The Company is focused on
mainlaining a nrong equity base lo ensu.e independence socunly, as weil as linancial flexibility for polential future bonowings, ia rcqui.ed
wilhoul impacling lhe risk proile of lhe Company.

The Compan/s senior managemenl oveBees the managemenl of lhese nsks. The Company's senior manageme,t is supporled by a
finaoclalrisk commitlee that advises on financialnsks snd the appropriate tinancial dsk governance fEmework lor the Colnpany. The
financisl risk committee provides assurance to the Company's s€nior managemeol that the Company's fnancial dsk activities are govemed
by appropfiaie policies and proc€dures and that finandrl isks are identified. measured and managed in accordance with the Company's
policjes and risk objectives All derivative activilies for risk rnanagement puQoses are c€r.ied oul by specialist teams lhal have the
appropiale skills, expedence and supeNision. lt is the Companys policy lhal no tEding in de,ivalives for sp€culative purposes may be



Notes lo consolidated financial Btatements for the vear ended 31 March 2022

Note 24: Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Set out below, is a comparison by class ofthe carying amounts and falr value ofthe Company's financial
instrumentsthat are recognised in the financial statements.

The Company maintains policies and procedures lo value ,inanoal assets or linancial liabililies using the best and
most .elevant data available. ln addilion, the Company intemally revie\4s valuations, inc.luding independent pnce
validalion for certain instrumenls. Fudher, in other instanc€s, Company retains independent pricing vendors to
assisl in conoborating ihe vahralions of certain instrLrments.

The fair value of the fnanoal assets and liabilities are included at the aftount at \ hich the instrument lhat would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaclion bet^een market participants at the

Fair value of security deposits have been estimated Lrsing a discounted cash iow model. The valuation requires
managementto make ce(ain assumptions about interest rates, maturity period, credil risk for€rated cash flows

Rs. ln Lakhs

Fair value hlerarchy
The folloring table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company's assets and tiabitities grouped
inlo Level 1 to Level 3 as described in significant accounting policies - Note 1. Further tabte describ€s the
valualion techniques used, key inputs to valuations and quantitaltve informatibn about signiicant unobseruable
inputs for fair value measurements

Ouantitative disclosures offair value measurement hierarchy forassets as at 31 March 2022:

Long-term fixed-rate and va.iable-rate receivables/borrou/ings are evaluated by the company based on
parameters such as interesl rates, individual creditworthinesg of the cuslomer and the sk characteristics of the
financed poecl. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected qedit losses of
these receivables. As of reporiing date the carrying arnounts of such receivables, net of allowances arc not
materially differenl from their c€lculated fair values.

Carrying value of loans from banks, other oon clrrent bonowings and other financjal liabilities is esimated by
discounting future cash fows using rales currently available foa debt on similar teams, credit risk and remaining
maludtes. The o\ n non- performance dsk as at reporting date was assessed to be insignificanl.

Sr No. Parrticulars Fair value measurement usinq Valuation technique lnputs used
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(a) Financial assets measue<l at afionised cost
(D

(iD

(iiD Other linancial asset

28,667.86

25,734 99
500

Discounted cash

(b) tinancial liability measuled at amonisect cost
(0

(iD

Borrowrngs 95,640.12 Discounled cash

discount rate,
maturity

Other linancial liabilities

ln Lakhs

Carying YalueSr. Particulars
31 Match 2022 31 March 2022

28,667 86
25,734.99

74 66
5.00

2,212_42
500

28,667.86
25,734.99

(a)

a)

Financial Asset
Caried at amortised cost

Loans given

Oiher linancial asset
Cash and c€sh equivalent'

FinancialLiabilities
Caraied at amo ised co3t
Boarowinqs
Of)er financial liabililies

95,640.12
24.A1

95,640.12
24-81

DBL INFRAASSETS PRIVATE UMIED
{Formerlv Hiqh Flv Airlines Private Limitedl

Thelollowing methods and assumptions were used to estimat€ the fairvalues:
' The company has not disclosed the fair values of trade payables, trade receivables ard cash and cash
equavalents because lheir carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

24 81



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerlv Hiqh Flv Airlines Private Limitedl

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2022

Note 25i Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital , share
premium and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to
maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. Company monitoc capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net
debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations

Rs. in lakhs

Note 26: Segment Reporting
Segments have been identified in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) 108 on
Operating Segments considering the risk or return profiles of the business. As required under lnd AS '108,

the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODlr) evaluates the performance and allocates resources based
on analysis of various performance indicators. Accordingly, information has been presented for the
Group's operating segments and the company has identified business segment as primary segment. The
reportable segment is Construction and Engineering Contracts.

Note 27; Reconciliation betlfleen opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities
arising from financing activities as required by lnd AS 7 "Statement ot Cash Flows" is as under:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Pa rticu lars Long Term Borrowings Short Term Borrowings
Balance as on 3l March 202'l
Add : Cash inflow 95,639.00 1 .12
Less : Cash outflow
Add : Non - Cash inflow
Less : Non - Cash outflow
tsalance as on 31 Maroh 2022 95,639.00 1.12

Particulars 31 March 2022
Loans and borowings
Trade payables
Other financial liability
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Net debt
Equity
Capital and net debt
Gearinq ratao

24.81
2,212.42

93,452.51

\15,126.75)
74325.76

119.3't%

9s,640.12



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 Match 2022

Note 28: Additional disclosures as perSchedule lll of the Companies Act 2013

CSR details for the current year (F.Y.21-22)
The company does not fall under the criteria of applicability of provlsions of CSR, as per the clauses
of Section '135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, no disclosure is given.

The Company has not entered in to any transactions during the year with the companies struck off
under section 248 ofCompanies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

During the financial years ended 31 March 2022, the Company has granted loans to the related
parties (to'associates' as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), without specifying any terms of
the repayment.

(lv) There is no benami property held by the Company and no proceedings have been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(v) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of
the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(vi) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Cunency during the financial
year.

(vii) There are no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of accounts and has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax
Act, 1961. Also, there are no previously unreco.ded income and related assets.

(viii) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

A) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (lntermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
lntermediary shall -
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneliciaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

B) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Party) with the understandang (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
comPany shall -
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Pafty (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

$.

(D

(iD

{iii)

a

:TS

,A
mt



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITEO
IFormerlv Hioh Flv Airlines Private Limlted)

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 3'l March 2022

Note- 29 Disclosure of Ratios :

Sr. No. Ratio Numerator Denominator 31 March 2022
Reasons tor change
in ratio by more than

25%

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

0

9)

h)

D

n

Current raiio (in times)

Debt-equity ratio (in
times)

Debt service coverage
raljo (in times)

Retum on equity ratio

lnventory tumover ratio
(in times)
Trade receivebles
tumover ralio (in times)

Trade payables turnover
ratio (in times)

Net capital turnover ratio
(in times)

Net pofit ratio

Return on capilal
employed

Lofig-lerm
borrowngs and

short{erm
bonowings

Profit before
interest and

exceptional ilefis

Profil after tax

operations

operations

Cost of
construction, change

in inventories and
other expenses

oPerations

Profll after tax

Profit after tax
excluding finance

costs

Current liabilities

Totaleqully

Finance cost together wiih
principal repayments of long
term boro,vings and curenl

maturities of long-term
borrowings during the period

Totalequity

Net trade recervables

Trade payables

Working capatal (working
capatal refers lo net curenl

assets arrived after reducing
current liabilities excluding
current maturities of long

team bonowings from cunent
assets)

Revenue f rom operations

Average capital employed
(capital employed refers to

total equity, long-term
borrowings and sho(-term

5.13

80,513.37

53 950/o

151_21

045

-72.290/a

-O.2oo/o

Not applicable s nce
thls s the f rst year

Not applicable since
this is ihe first year

Not applicable since
this is the first year

Not applicable since
this is the first year

Not applicable since
this is the first year

Nol applicable since
this is the first year

S

flY
&

Not applicable since
this is lhe flrsi year
Not applicable since
this is the first year
Not applicable since
this is the first year

Not applicable since
this is the first year



Notes to consolidated financialstatements forthe year ended 31 March 2022

Note 30: The Company has invested in one Subsidiary Company and ten Associate companies during the year and since this is the first year
of consolidation, the previols year fgures have not been provided.

Signature to notes to accounts 1to30

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

For Mukund ,rl Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 106655W

For and on behalf of the Board
For DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited

ctN u74110MP2010PTC023673

4-
Dilip Suryavanshi
(luanaging Director)

Place: Bhopal
Daled: 27.05.2022

6iklt,
rector)

DIN DI

Jiniwal Raghuwanshi
(Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)

(S. M. Chitale)
Partner

M No 111383

Oaled: 27 .05 2022

MUMBAI

ltt'



Sr.N

o.
Name of the subsidiary Company

Reporting period for the 

subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding 

company's reporting 

period 

Status Share capital Reserves & surplus Total assets Total Liabilites Investments Turnover
Profit before 

taxation

Provision for 

taxation

Profit after 

taxation

Proposed 

Dividend

% of 

shareholding

1 DBL Rewa Sidhi Highways Private Limited 
Not different from Holding 

Company
Subsidiary 15.96                                  -3,038.33                          27,400.98                                     30,423.35                                  Nil 10,857.99      -2,655.06          -89.92                -2,565.13       Nil 70%

Names of the subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations :

NIL

Name of the subsidiary which have been liquidated during the year :

NIL

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Sr.N

o.

Name of the Associates and Joint Ventures Latest audited Balance 

Sheet Date

Extend of 

ShareHolding %

Shares of 

Associate/Joint 

Ventures held by the 

Company on the year 

end:

Amount of Investment 

in Associate /Joint 

Venture :

Description of how there is 

significant influence

Reason why the 

associate/jointventure is 

not consolidated

1
DBL Bangalore Nidagatta Highways Pvt Limited

19.05.2022 49.00% 158905
10,730.67                        

Significant Influence
Consolidated with the 

Holding Company*

2
DBL Bellary Byrapura Highways Pvt Limited

19.05.2022 49.00% 367776
2,677.36                          

Significant Influence
Consolidated with the 

Holding Company*

3
DBL Byrapura Challakhere Highways Pvt Limited

27.05.2022 49.00% 357730
1,989.40                          

Significant Influence
Consolidated with the 

Holding Company*

4
DBL Nidagatta Mysore  Highways Pvt Limited

19.05.2022 49.00% 417772
11,189.09                        

Significant Influence
Consolidated with the 

Holding Company*

5
DBL Gorhar Khairatunda Highways Pvt Limited

19.05.2022 49.00% 346993
1,807.12                          

Significant Influence
Consolidated with the 

Holding Company*

6
Pathrapali Kathghora Highways Pvt Ltd 

19.05.2022 49.00% 76581
1,161.30                          

Significant Influence
Consolidated with the 

Holding Company*

7
Narenpur Purnea Highways Pvt Ltd 

19.05.2022 49.00% 71896
2,355.22                          

Significant Influence
Consolidated with the 

Holding Company*

8
Repallewada Highways Ltd 

19.05.2022 49.00% 88534
1,176.04                          

Significant Influence
Consolidated with the 

Holding Company*

9
Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Pvt Ltd 

19.05.2022 49.00% 90396
1,237.00                          

Significant Influence
Consolidated with the 

Holding Company*

10
Dhrol Bhadra Highways Ltd 

19.05.2022
35.12%

62348
1,796.41                          

Significant Influence
Consolidated with the 

Holding Company*

* Dilip Buildcon Limited is the Holding Company

For MUKUND M CHITALE & CO.       

Chartered Accountants                      DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED

Firm Regn. No. 106655W                

Sd/- Sd/-

Dilip Suryavanshi Ashwini Verma 

(Director) (Director)
DIN: 00039944 DIN - 00039946

      Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

(S. M. Chitale)                       Mayank Jiniwal Pragya Raghuwanshi
Partner                                    (Chief Financial Officer ) (Company Secretary)

M.No. 111383                             

Place:    Mumbai                       Place:    Bhopal

Dated:   27.05.2022                  Dated:   27.05.2022

For & on behalf of the Board

Form no AOC -1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing Salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries / Associates / Joint Ventures as per the Companies Act 2013

Part "A" : Subsidiaries

Networth attributable to 

shareholding as per latest 

audited Balance Sheet

4,679.37                                            

458.22                                               

Profit or Loss for the year 

considered in Consolidation

2,297.46                                            

6,995.31                                            

324.18                                               

375.10                                               

Part "B" : Associates and Joint Ventures 

(Rs. in Lakhs)

447.37                                               

219.45                                               

614.30                                               

(Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures)

-173.13                                             

-958.42                                             

-701.76                                             

-897.24                                             

-611.97                                             

178.27                                              

                                         -2,512.01 

                                           1,489.89 

                                             -458.88 

                                         -2,806.49 

1,415.12                                            
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